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Strategic Report

GROUP AT A GLANCE «
-

The alternative group for
ambitious brands.

We're not alternative for its own
sake, we just believe we've found

a better way to help brands thrive.
By collaborating because it does
good, not because it looks good.

By being close to our Clients,

not the right address. By giving our
Agencies freedom, not instructions.
By listening, before we talk.

By creating and sharing innovation
not as a means to impress, but for the
benefit of brands. And by treating
every Client like our first.
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IN E(C)S | A fantastic addition to an

ever-growing list of bluechip Clients.
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CHAPTER V\ADVANTAGE

MISSION
INTEGRATED

offer a full range of creative services
across all sectors.

MISSION
ADVANTAGE

enables all our Agencies
to call upon specialist
expertise as needed.
Whilst not their core
services, they give
Agencies the power

to deliver a flexible
multi-discipline service
for our Clients.

mongoose

MISSION
INDUSTRY

are deep specidlists in
particular industries.
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OUR COVID RESPONSE

© SURVIVE
© STRIVE
© THRIVE

Like every business, MISSION faced
enormous challenges due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Throughout

2020, we used our collective talents

to implement a proactive strategy of
SURVIVE, STRIVE and THRIVE.

Through this approach, we are managing
the business impact of COVID and laying
the ground for [uture growth.

Annual report for the year ended December 2020
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In the face ol adversily.
___he MISSION Agencies
and their people responded

brilliantly (o the challenges
set through 2020.

- David Morgan, Chairman
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The extraordinary eflorts
of our team have ensured

from the pandemic an even
stronger and fitler business.

- James Clifton. Group Chiel Execulive
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
|

businesses, to high profile brands such as Diesel
and SpaceNK, helping them better understand
what drives the behaviour of their customers and
ultimately how to improve marketing activity.
Although modest in financial terms, we view the
acquisition as a significant strategic advance.

We have been delighted at how quickly the
Innovationbubble team have integrated themselves
into the Group, already working closely with a
number of the Agencies, and we have been particularly
pleased by the positive responses from our Clients,
Group-wide, to this valuable extended capability.

In October we launched MISSION MADE, our new
centralised 24/7 Digital Production and Innovation
studio. MISSION MADE initially supported four
Agencies across the Group but a full roll-out is
now underway and expected to be completed in
the next 12 months. Two hubs have been created
in Norwich and Ho Chi Minh City, providing access
to a range of digital production services including
web and mobile development, motion graphics,
digital design and technical management.

Finally, in October we also welcomed brand
activation consultancy, Alive, into the Group.

This small but international team, based in
Singapore, offer expert advice and results-driven
activation campaigns for global brands across
mutltiple media channels and marketing platforms,
expanding the range of services we can offer our
Agencies even further.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Operating income (‘revenue’) fell by 24% to £61.5m
(2019: £81.0m), with the impact of COVID-19 being

felt initially in our Asian operations and then most

notably in our property and events businesses.

Alter an exceptionally challenging
2, we saw a sequential recovery
as the year progressed.

Margins (headline operating profit as a percentage

of revenue) recovered strongly in H2 to 11.5%, reflecting
careful management of costs and benefit of Government
support, resulting in an H2 headline operating profit

of £3.7m and £19m for the year (2019: £10.8m).

In times of adversity, opportunities inevitably present
themselves and, as previously highlighted, the diversity
of our portfolio has meant that we have been well
placed to grasp these opportunities. Our specialist

technology and mobility Agency, April Six,
capitalised on the enormous growth in the use

of online platforms and delivered an excellent
performance, with key highlights including the
successful expansion of the Agency'’s scope of
work with Amazon Web Services. The Group also
launched the chemical group INEOS’ hand sanitiser
range in response to the impact of the pandemic.
In addition, Pathfindr, our asset tracking business,
demonstrated its ability to innovate, adapting its
core technology to create the Safe Distancing
Assistant, a device to warn if personnel within
businesses come within two metres of each other.

MAKING A POSITIVE CHANGE

Despite the distractions of 2020,

[ am delighted that the year has

seen us cement our commitment

to Making Positive Change through
the development of our inaugural
Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) manifesto. This manifesto
embodies our commitment (o ensuring
that the impact MISSION makes

on the world should always be positive
and that our interaction with our
people, Clients, communilies and the
wider environmen( makes a diflerence.

This manifesto has been developed through our
work with advisory partners Creative Access and
Green Element, and outlines an ambitious but
deliverable and measurable strategy which is
supported by our overall growth plans. We look
forward to reporting on our progress in the coming
years as we deliver this plan.

A key part of our manifesto is focused on introducing
and developing talent in the industry. We work in
many local communities and in several cases are

a key employer in the towns where we have offices.
In these areas we will continue to open our doors

to local schools, colleges and universities to
encourage emerging talent. As part of this we have
introduced an Apprenticeship programme that has
seen us take on 28 individuals, with a target to more
than double this number by 2023.

Annual report for the year ended December 2020



OUTLOOK

‘Trading in the first quarter

of FY21 is on track with our
expectations. Whilst the lockdown
restrictions ‘implemented inJanuary
2021 have inevitably impacted

certain markets and sectors more

than others, our performance
remains in line with our plans.

The Government's roadmap to exiting lockdown.

is providing much needed clarity for UK businesses.
We are encouraged by the robust and growing
pipeline of new business opportunities that are
presenting themselves. It is particularly pleasing

to see that a growing proportion of this pipeline
includes collaboration between two or more
Agencies from across the Group.

Whilst our global operations have not been
affected by Brexit, the removal of much of
the uncertainty around negotiations opens
up even more opportunities for us across our
international markets.

We see significant further opportunity for
MISSION here through our Client-led strategy
and look forward to building on our market
leading secior expertise in new territories.

We also plan to copitdl'ise on the undoubted

acquisition, consolidation and collaboration
opportunities that will arise over the next 12
months. We aim to leverage our compelling
infrastructure by adding high margin, high
engagement capabilities in data, analytics and' .
performance media, underpinning a 14% headline
operating profit margin target by 2022. Finally,
following its successful launch, we will also look
to build out our central eCommerce cdpability.:
via MISSION Made. '

James Clifton
Group Chief Executive
14 April 2021
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DEMONSITRATINGIRESIEIENCE

MRADINGIPEREGORMANGH

While the first hall of 2020 was
severely impacted by the onset

of the CON'ID 19 pandemic,

the Group reconered strongly

in 12, demonstrating s resilionce
and the effectiveness of (he
dectsions it ook fn [11 (0 mitfeate
the impact of the pandemic,

The first half of the yeer sow revenues decline

- drarnetically, by as much as 80% in out particdlody
offfected Agencies in the propearty, avanis amncd
ehiesme spoee. busREs pritadias ae fhis Tme
were fo profect the hedkh and welloeing of our

st and to emibroce @ weorlking frem home eppreach
ihat encloled us to provide seamless continuity

of Client servica. We e proud ther, thanks to
Group’s contlinued hewd cedicatfion,
our Client refention remained excallent durng This
excepiionally chellsnging period.

Owr financlal priorities at the economic helgiht of

e pandemic were to miigerte the impact of the
crisls, presarve cash and, widh the confinued suppert
of our bankers, NatWest, to agres ielasations of
covenants and any adidiiondl lguidity thak might
be required ih @ downside scenare. The strong
relationship we have developed with NettWest during
mere then a decade of working closely together
encibled this support o be put in placs swifty.

In the event, no additional lquidity wes required

due to the GCrovp's cash Mmenhagement activities.

The actions we ook in (he [rst
hall of the year ensured that we
were well placed o bounce back
in the second hall. as trading
began (o reconer.

Although revenues in H2 were sill well below these
of 2019, we sl operating profit margins
of 1.5% and @ headline prefit e of £3.4mM
in e second half, @ creditaile performonce.

Owr cash conservafion also proved highly
effective, and the yeor ended with the lowest net
figure n the Group's history.

Billings and

Tumever follings) was 29% lower than the previous
year, ot £1219m (2019: £171.7m), but sinee bilings
include pass-treugh costs (@.g. TV companies’
ehanges for buyling alrtime), the Boand doss not
consider tumover to be @ key
fror it Agieneles

Instsad), views operaing (umeover
third-party costs) @s @ FReCsUre
of activity levelz. The excepiion to Hhis is Padhfinde,
Group’s esset Taeking business,
wihetre tumover is @ more relevent Mmeasure t© gauge
progress e against relevent compatitors.

Token os @ whele, The Group's operding theeme

{refemed to os “revenue”) for the year reducad by
245% %o £61.5m (2019: £81.0m) but of
paendemic weas felt most severaly in Q2 as shown

in the chart below, conpaning 2020 revenue with
e equivalent perods in 2019,
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Our cash conservation
actions proved highly
elfeclive, and the year

~ended with the lowes(
nel debt figure in the
Group’s hislory.

- Peter Fitzwillianm. Chiel Financial OfTicer
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There was also a wide range of variation across

our different Agencies. Whilst the most significantly
impacted sectors were property (ThinkBDW),

events (Bray Leino Events) and cinema-related sales
promotions (Mongoose), the diversity of our Client
portfolio ensured that we have been at the forefront
of activity in more resilient sectors such as healthcare
and technology. April Six, our specialist technology
and mobility Agency, performed particularly well
during the period, growing Amazon Web Services
(AWS) into an important Group Client.

While much of Pathfindr’s Client
base was subjecl (o the same
lockdown restriclions as the rest

ol the world, il again demonstrated
its ability to adapt. It sold 24,000
units ol its Sale Distancing Assistant
innovalion during 2020, helping
Pathlindr (o increase turnover by
over 60% to £1.5m (2019: £0.9m).

One of the differentiating features of MISSION

is the longevity and loyalty of its Client base.

We believe this is due to the dynamic and
Agency-first culture which ensures Clients feel they
are receiving a boutique level of Client service

but yet supported by the resources of a multi-national
group. Our Client retention statistics remained

strong during this exceptionally challenging year,

with well over 50% of our revenues generated from
Clients who have been with us for S years or more.

Profit and margins

The Directors measure and report the Group's
performance primarily by reference to headline
results, in order to avoid the distortions created
by one-off events and non-cash accounting
adjustments relating to acquisitions.

Headline resulits are calculated before
acquisition adjustments, exceptional items,
losses from start-up activities and investment
write-offs (as set out in Note 3).

As with revenue, headline operating profit
was very clearly divided into two halves.

In H1, profits were hit hard by the suddenness
of the drop in revenue.

As an “Agency [irst” group,

each Agency CEO was empowered
to take cosl reduction actions
appropriate (o their own
circumstances but with the benefit
ol central coordination and support.
Each Board member immediately
and voluntarily reduced their own
salary by 20% and this approach
was widely adopted across the
Group. Additionally, many stafl

in those Agencies most impactled
by COVID-19 agreed (o be
furloughed in order (o preserve
jobs; al ils peak, one third of the
Group’s workforce was [urloughed.
Despite these mitigating actions, the revenue
decline was so severe that the Group reported

an H1loss of £1.8m. Regrettably, due to the
sustained reduction in levels of revenue in

some businesses, right-sizing in H2 resulted

in 10% of our workforce being made redundant.
We also took the decision to exit two of

our London offices in order to reduce our

cost base further. The costs of these one-off

COVID-related restructuring events have
been excluded from headline results.

Due to these actions, and despite H2 revenues
being 22% lower than in 2019, our margin
{headline operating profit as a percentage

of revenue) recovered strongly in H2, to 11.5%,
resulting in an H2 headline operating profit

of £3.7m and £1.9m for the year (2019: £10.8m).
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The Government’s Coronavirus

Job Relention Scheme was of
significant benefit in 2020, without
which many more jobs would

have been losl as we reacled (o
sharply reduced revenues. Instead,
the Scheme allowed continued
employment until revenues started
lo improve and we were able (o bring
stall back off furlough.

During the year, the Group benefitted from £3.0m of
furlough receipts, which have been netted off gross

employment costs within headline operating expenses.

Introduced at the end of March, the Group received
assistance of £1.6m in Q2, after which furlough claims
tailed off as demonstrated in the chart below.
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After £0.1m of profits from joint ventures (2019: £0.1m)
and financing costs of £0.8m (2019: £0.7m), headline
profit before tax was £1.2m (2019: £10.2m). Considering
the very dramatic impact of COVID-19 on the Group,
we were pleased to deliver this profitable result,
which was ahead of market expectations.

Adjustments to reported profits, detailed further

in Note 3, totalled £3.2m (2019: £1.9m), comprising
acquisition-related items of £1.9m (2019: £1.3m),
reflecting the strong performance of krow during
2020, COVID-related restructuring costs of £1.0m
(2019 nil) ond losses from start-up activities of £0.3m
(2019: £0.4m). After these adjustments, the reported
loss before tax was £2.1m (2019: profit of £8.3m).

Taxation

COVID-19 has had a significant
eflfect on the Group’s headline
tax rate. Whilsl most territories
experienced reduced revenues
and prolits, the exception was

the US (predominantly April Six’s
Wesl Coast activilies), where (ax
rates are much higher than in

the UK. This factor, coupled

with losses in Asia and Germany
which were unable (o be ulilised
elsewhere, resulled in an unusually
high headline (ax rale of 42.6%
(2019: 20.5%). The headline tax
rate is expected (o reduce (o
more normal levels during 2021.
On a reported basis, because amortisation of
acquisition-related intangibles and adjustments
to contingent consideration are not deductible
for tax purposes, this has a significant effect

on the Group's reported tax rate, resulting in

a charge of £0.2m on reported losses before

tax of £2.1m (2019: tax rate of 22.5% on reported
profits before tax of £8.3m). The tax rate is
expected to be consistently higher than the
statutory rate (of 19.0%, unchanged from 2019)
but the sizeable reduction in profits as a result
of COVID and the relative size of non-deductible
acquisition-related items results in a highly

distorted outcome in 2020 which is not expected
to be repeated in future years.

Annual report for the year ended December 2020



Strategic Report

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

Earnings Per Share

Headline EPS was 1.0 pence (2019: 9.5 pence) and,
on a diluted basis, was also 1.0 pence (2019: 9.0 pence).

After tax, the reported loss for the year was £2.2m
(2019: profit of £6.4m) and EPS was a loss of 2.3 pence
(2019: profit of 7.5 pence). On a diluted basis, EPS was
also a loss of 2.3 pence (2019: profit of 7.1 pence).

DIVIDEND

The Board adopts a progressive
dividend policy, aiming (o0 grow
dividends each year in line with
earnings but always balancing

the desire o reward shareholders

via dividends with the need (o fund
the Group’s growth ambitions and
maintain a strong balance sheel.

In view of the modest profit reported in 2020 and

the fact that the Group accessed The Government’s
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme, the Board did

not pay an interim dividend and does not propose

a final dividend. However, in view of the very significantly
better than expected net debt position at 31 December
2020, the Board has, subsequent to the year-end,
reinstated and paid the 2019 final dividend that was
deferred at the economic height of the pandemic.

We remain committed to our previously stated long

term progressive dividend policy and will continue to
monitor the situation as 2021 progresses.

BALANCE SHEET AND CASH FLOW

The key balance sheet ratio measured
and monitored by the Board is the ratio
of debl (o headline EBITDA (“leverage
ratio”). The Group slarted the year in a
strong financial position, with a bank
debt leverage ratio of less than x0.5
and commiltled bank facilities of £15m.

As a precautionary measure, these facilities
were increased to £20m in Q1 and, as the impact
of the pandemic started to be felt, a number

of scenarios were modelled for the possible
severity and duration of COVID-19. Sharing these
scenarios with our bankers, NatWest, we secured
their support for relaxations of covenants in

both 2020 and 2021 and additional liquidity that
might be required under our downside scenario.

At the same time, we implemented a series of
cash-conservation measures. As well as the salary
reduction and furlough actions mentioned earlier,
all non-essential capital expenditure was put

on hold, we took advantage of the Government's
Time To Pay scheme, we reached agreement

with vendors of acquired businesses for delayed
payment terms, and we deferred the 2019 final
dividend, due for payment in July 2020.

These decisive aclions helped (o
reduce the Group’s net bank debt
posilion al the half year (0 £0.9m
(2019: £5.1m) and (he conlinuing
focus on cash preservation in H2
resulled in year-end nel bank debt of
£1.2m, an historic low (2019: £4.9m).

At the height of uncertainty in Q2, the Group deferred
roughly £6m of VAT, PAYE and National Insurance taxes.
All deferred PAYE and National Insurance was repaid

in Q3 and all deferred VAT has been repaid in Q1 2021.

Cash payments of £0.1m were settled for acquisitions
totalling £0.6m made in the year and £2.2m of
acquisition obligations from prior years were settled,
of which £2.0m was in cash (2019: £3.3m, of which
£2.7m was settled in cash). Amounts settled in the
year were both paid later in the year and lower than
the £3.4m expected at the end of 2019 as a result

of reaching agreement with vendors to defer payments
due to COVID-19 uncertainties. After increases of
£1.3min estimated future contingent consideration
payments, the estimated acquisition liability at

31 December 2020 totalled £8.5m (2019 £8.9m).

The large majority of this relates to post-acquisition
earn-out profits for periods which have now ended
and, as a consequence, £7.5mis expected to

be settled in cash within the coming 12 months.
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Together with the short term nature of the Group's
bank debt, due to its maturity in September 2021,
the Group reported net current liabilities of £8.9m at
the end of 2020. However, with new long term bank
facilities agreed since year-end (referred to further
below and in Note 19) and with acquisition liabilities
due to be settled during 2021, the Group expects to
report net current assets at the end of 2021.

COVID-19 had a significant impact on the profits of

many of the Group's Agencies in 2020 but none has

been mortally wounded. The Board expects levels of
trading to return to pre~-pandemic levels during H2

2021 and, accordingly, has concluded that any impairment
in the value of goodwill at 31 December 2020 from the
pandemic is only temporary. Details of the Board's annual
assessment of the value of goodwill are set out in Note 11.

At the end of the year, the Group’s leverage ratio of net
bank debt to headline EBITDA {on an adjusted basis,
pre-1FRS 16), was x0.6 (2019: x0.4) but, due to the depressed
levels of EBITDA, its ratio of total debt, including remaining
acquisition obligations, to EBITDA had increased to

x4.3 (2019: x1.1). In the first half of 2021, while profits

recover from the impact of COVID-19, these leverage

ratios are expected to exceed the Board's KPi targets

but are expected to return to more normal levels in H2.

GOING CONCERN

The positive progress being made
around the world with a vaccination
programme suggests that the peak
economic uncerlainty of COVID-19
has passed.

However, further scenario modelling has been
undertaken of the Group's net debt position
into the reasonably foreseeable future.

This modelling included cautious assumptions

about trading performance, investment plans and
acquisition consideration obligations. The principal
uncertainty in the projections is when and to what
extent the Group's revenues will return to pre-pandemic
levels. The central scenario anticipates that revenues
will remain below 2019 levels until Q3 2021. Against

this scenario, the Group was demonstrated to

have adequate headroom against its pre-existing
£20m banking facilities. These facilities were also
demonstrated to be sufficient to cater for a downside

scenario whereby the Group's trading in H12021
repeated that seen in H1 2020, the worst in the
Group's history.This headroom has been further
enhanced by a new three year £20m Revolving Credit
Facility with NatWest which has an “accordion option”
to increase the facility by up to £5m.

Accordingly, the Board has
concluded thal it is appropriale (0
adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPIs are designed to monitor the Group's revenue
and profit growth, within a safe capital structure.

Whilst COVID-19 has interrupted
the Group’s consislent track record
of growth, the Board has reviewed
and reconlirmed the Group’s

KPI targels as being appropriate
for a post-pandemic environment.

The targets are as follows:

+ Achieve organic revenue growth of at least 5% per year;

- Increase headline operating profit margins to 14%;

- Grow headline profit before tax by 10% year-on-year; and

+ Maintain the ratio of net bank debt to EBITDA" at or
below x1.5 and the ratio of total debt {including both
bank debt and deferred acquisition consideration)
to EBITDA at or below x2.0.

*EBITDA is headline operating profit before depreciation
and amortisation charges.

At the individual Agency level, the Group's financial
KPls comprise revenue and controllable profitability
measures, predominantly based on the achievement
of the annual budget. More detailed KPIs are applied
within individual Agencies. In addition to financial
KPls, the Board periodicaily monitors the length of
Client relationships, the forward visibility of revenue
and the retention of key staff.

Peter Fitzwilliam
Chief Financial Officer
14 April 2021
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COVID-19

The immediate impact of COVID-19 during

2020 was a swift and sharp reduction in revenues
in our Agencies operating in specific areas,
particularly property and events, which were
seriously affected by the UK Government's first
lockdown. The more general effect was created
by the huge uncertainty around the economic
shock of COVID-19, which resulted in many of

our Clients pausing or deferring marketing
expenditure. Whilst this was the general effect,
parts of our Group operating in other specific
areas, particularly technology, delivered stronger
results in 2020 than in the previous year.

Being primarily a provider of services, we had

no material supply chain challenges and we
benefitted from the investment in systems,
relationships and wellness initiatives that enabled
our workforce to work effectively from home
when required and maintain social distancing,
thereby ensuring we remained open for business
and minimised any disruption for our Clients.

With the worst of COVID-19 now appearing to
have passed, the remaining uncertainty is whether
there will be further lockdowns and at what point
economic activity will return to pre-pandemic
levels. Although this remains difficult to predict,
2020 has demonstrated that we have the
resilience to weather the effects of the pandemic.

Brexit

Whilst the uncertainty surrounding the economic
impact of the UK’s departure from the EU represented
a risk at the end of 2019, the trade deal agreed
shortly before the end of 2020 has removed most

of this uncertainty and there are no indications of

our international Clients changing their behaviour.
We no longer consider this economic uncertainty

to represent a significant risk.

Loss of Key Clients

The consequence of Client losses is the same as for

a general economic downturn, i.e. potential reduction
in revenue and profit, but to a lesser degree. The risk
of Client loss is mitigated both by our continuous new
business activity and also by the efforts of dedicated
account teams, who strive to ensure the quality of our

work meets or exceeds our Clients’ expectations
at all times and who modify our approach when
necessary. One measure of our success is our
Client retention performance. In 2020, over 50%

of our revenue was again from Clients that have
been with us for 5 years or more and almost 20%
from Clients of 20 years or more. Indeed, for those
of our Agencies that have been in existence for

20 years or more, the proportion of revenue from
Clients that have been with us for 20 years or more
was over 30%. The risk is further mitigated by the
Group's broad spread of Clients, with no individual
Client representing more than 10% of Group revenue.

Loss of Key People

In common with all service businesses, the Group

is reliant on the quality of its people. Strenuous efforts
are made to provide a rewarding work environment
and remuneration packages to retain and motivate
our leadership teams. Two measures of our success
are that our staff retention statistics are higher than
the industry average and that the vast.-majority of
the core management of our acquired businesses
remain in place today.

The system of financial rewards is reviewed regularly

by the Remuneration Committee and revised where
appropriate. An example of this was the 2017 Growth
Share Scheme, designed to provide a powerful retention
incentive for our key business leaders. A measure of our
success was that, when the scheme matured in April
2020, we had retained all but one of the 17 individuals.

Underperformance of Acquired Businesses

Potential acquisitions are carefully considered

by the Board as part of its recurring business,

and appropriate legal, commercial and financial

due diligence is carried out on all acquisitions.

The Directors consider that the main risk is

overpaying for the level of profits subsequently
generated and so, wherever possible, agree payment
terms for acquisitions in a way that results in the
majority of consideration being conditional on the
post-acquisition profitability of the acquired business.
In this way, if the business underperforms against
expectations set at the time of the acquisition,

the total amount paid will reduce correspondingly.
Examples of this approach to risk management can
be found in the Group's three most recent acquisitions,
where the initial outlay in each case was less than
one third of the estimated total consideration.
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Strategic Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Board takes its Companies Act Section 172 duly o promote
the success of the Group very seriously and considers the Group S
various stakeholders when making decisions.

Principal decisions

Most of the principal decisions taken by the
Board during the year revolved, predictably,
around the tactical and strategic responses
to the threats and opportunities posed by the
COVID-19 pandemic crisis. These decisions
were taken with a view to safeguarding

the welfare of all employees; ensuring the
operational and financial stability of the
Group; and presenting a path to long-term
sustainable growth once the crisis has passed.

The primary decisions taken in this regard were:

1. increasing the Group's banking facilities,

2: postponing the 2019 final dividend payment,

3. rescheduling vendor consideration payments,

4 consulting with employees regarding
short-term pay-reductions, furlough
arrangements and redundancies,

5. accessing Government support initiatives,

6: terminating surplus office leases,

committing to significant, positive
Environmental and social change.

Details of the financial impact of items 1-6
are dealt with in the CFO's Report.

Rationale

The rationale behind these decisions goes
to the fundamentals of business management:
to first survive and then to thrive.

The impact of the pandemic, as explained
elsewhere in the Strategic Report, was felt in
different ways in each Agency around MISSION.
Decisions needed to be made that enabled
Agencies to be sufficiently funded and resourced
to be able to continue to operate to their fullest
potential, and deliver for our Clients throughout
the crisis and beyond without interruption.

A fine balance needed to be struck to ensure
that no single stakeholder set was bearing

too much of this burden. Each decision listed
above centred on support to be provided by

a different, specific stakeholder set. This enabled
the Board to clearly demonstrate a plan that
would deliver this balanced approach.

As importantly, the engagement with each
stakeholder set needed to be able to convey
this message clearly and effectively.

Ultimately the successful execution of each
decision, coupled with a sturdy starting point,
placed MISSION in a strong position to see
out the crisis, position itself for future growth
and safeguard the welfare of its workforce.

Engagement

In the early days and weeks of the crisis,

the Board met regularly and often to review the
latest management information and understand
the potential risks this presented to the Group
and its stakeholders. The Board focused on
funding, and specific KPIs reviewed included
Client spending levels, adherence to payment
terms, contractual commitments, Government
support packages and banking headroom over
the coming twelve months.

The MISSION Board and Senior Management
Teams have worked diligently in recent years to
lay the sound foundations that would ultimately
enable the Board to swiftly debate, agree and
implement informed decisions during the crisis.

Taking each primary decision in turn,
the engagement strategies were as follows, led by
the principal relationship-holder in each case:
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We believe we also have a vital role to play in
nurturing talent. We will continue to open our doors
to local schools, colleges and universities. And with
28 Apprentices across the Group and an ongoing
intern programme open to all, we are seeing a new
diverse talent pool growing.

Family:

We recognise the importance of family and home life.
We have over 140 different flexible working patterns
across the Group on top of parental return to work
support schemes and a supportive approach to helping
our People with 'life moments’ when time away from
work is needed. We are committed to enabling our

Measure

People to combine family life with pursuing their careers.
To creating environments where they can be at their
best without feeling that home life needs to suffer.

Health & wellbeing:

We take a holistic view to supporting our People.

This focus has seen our Agencies develop progressive
wellbeing initiatives and programmes, combining
free mental health support and educational life
balance activities overseen by our 36 trained mental
health first aiders. By creating environments where
conversations on wellbeing are commonplace and
support readily available, we will change the way

we all think and act about workplace mental health.

2021 2023
target target

21,00y, gap equality e

e
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GOVERNANCE

Unlike many other groups, our Agencies, which have
mainly come into the Group via acquisition, retain their
original personnel, cultures and business practices,

with MISSION providing the support infrastructure and
economies of scale of a multi-national group. This sees

a highly personalised and Client-centric culture

which has led to an expanding and loyal Client base.

We believe the role of the Board is not to direct these
Agencies but ensure they are supported and collaborate
to deliver the best work to help our Clients succeed.

Our Board and non-executive group have a good
balance of sector and financial experience alongside
Agency CEOs. Their actions are held to account

by independent Audit & Risk and Remuneration
committees with the Audit & Risk committee focused
on ensuring that our People, Agencies and the Group
are consistently safeguarded.

Our very existence is dependent upon our ability to
foster strong and mutually beneficial relationships

with our People, Clients, Shareholders and wider
Stakeholders. Client happiness, referral ratings
and staff retention levels are indicators of our
collective success and are consistently measured
across the Group.

All stakeholders need to be part of our journey,
to share in the highs and lows, so we are committed
to being open and transparent, always.

Our goal:

2021 improve stakeholder advocacy across the
board as shown through Client happiness levels,
referral ratings and staff retention levels.

"We look for solutions where others see problems.

We are connected by the ambition to deliver real
impact for our Clients, People and Communities.

We celebrate, value and respect diversity, treating
others as we wish to be treated ourselves. What we do
matters, and it needs to make a positive difference.”
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Corporate Governance

The [ollowing Directors represent the committee
responsible [or corporale governance compliance:

DAVID MORGAN

Chairman

David founded Bray Leino, one of the UK'’s first truly
integrated Agencies, in 1974 and was its CEO until 2008.
He became Non-Executive Chairman of Bray Leino in
2008 and was appointed Chairman of MISSION in April
2010. Before founding Bray Leino he worked in a number
of London advertising agencies, including Dorlands.

PETER FITZWILLIAM

Chief Financial Officer And Company Secretary
Peter is a Chartered Accountant with over 30 years'
financial and management advisory experience in private
and quoted companies across a range of industry sectors.
Finance Director of Business Post Group pic (now UK Mail
Group plc) from 1999-2006, he helped take it into the

FTSE 250. Peter supported MISSION through its refinancing
in April 2010 and joined the Board in September 2010.

JULIAN HANSON-SIVITH

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Julianis an entrepreneur and PE investor with significant
experience in marketing and consulting services.

In 1986 Julian co-founded FTi Consulting, one of Europe's
largest business communications consultancies, and
following its sale in 1999 became COO of Lighthouse
Global Network. in 2001 he joined US-based PE firm
Lake Capital, before co-founding Iceni Capital in 2007,
investing in UK-based business services companies.

He is Chair of Apella Advisors. He joined the Board in
October 2015 and Chairs the Audit & Risk Committee.

ANDY NASH

Non-Executive Director

Andy's career began with Cadbury Schweppes plc in
marketing, ultimately managing the Typhoo brands.

He has extensive board experience of FTSE companies
Taunton Cider, Matthew Clark, Merrydown and Photo-Scan.
He has UK & International experience with K&L Gates LLP,
the global law firm and with PE backed Brand Addition,
Tristar Worldwide, History Press and Pureprint Group.

He also chairs Vaultex UK Ltd, the UK’s leading manager

of cash owned by HSBC and Barclays. He chaired Somerset
CCC and has served as a director of the England & Wales
Cricket Board. Andy was appointed to the Board in August
2018 and Chairs the Remuneration Committee.
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Each of our Execulive Direclors has had a long career

in marketing communications:

JAMES CLIFTON

Group Chiet Executive

James started out Client-side before working for various
agencies in the UK and internationally, within Omnicom
and WPP. He created balloon dog in 2008, having led an
MBO of Fox Murphy. balloon dog was acquired by MISSION
and James was appointed to the Board in October 2012.
He became CEO of bigdog following the merger of balloon
dog with fellow MISSION Agency Big Communications,
founded Pathfindr, the Group's lloT Asset Tracking business,
and chaired the Group's Integrated Agencies before being
appointed Group Chief Executive in April 2019.

DYLAN BOGG

ixecutive Director

Dylan is Chief Creative Officer of krow and oversees creative
output for the Agency. He had built a successful business

by the age of 24 and this was used as the bedrock for the
launch of Big Communications in 1996 which was acquired
by MISSION in 2006. Dylan is a multi-award-winning creative
and was appointed to the Board in April 2010. He also chairs
the group-wide Creative Directors’ Forum.

BARRY COOK

Executive Ditector

Barry is Chairman of krow which he co-founded in 2005.
Prior to that he was Chairman of the London office of Leo
Burnett and, previously, Managing Director at D'Arcy during
which tenure the agency won multiple creative awards at
Cannes, D&AD, British Television as well as several APG and
IPA Effectiveness Awards. krow was acquired by MISSION

in 2018 and Barry was appointed to the Board in June 2019.

ROBERT DAY

Deputy Chairman

Robert is Executive Chairman of ThinkBDW, a company

he founded as Robert Day Associates in 1987 at the age

of 22. Re-branding as ThinkBDW in 2004, Robert has led the
company to its position as the leading property marketing
specialist in the UK. The business was acquired by MISSION
in March 2007 and Robert joined the Board in April 2010.

He was appointed Deputy Chairman of MISSION in 2018.

GILES LEE

Cominercial Director

Giles joined Bray Leino in 2005 as Group Finance Director
following his successful role in transforming Merrydown

plc from its fundamental financial restructure in 1998

to its acquisition in 2005. Giles was appointed CFO/COO
of Bray Leino in 2011 and Executive Chairman in 2013.

He was appointed to the Board in March 2013 and
became Commercial Director for MISSION in July 2018.

As well as providing commercial support to the Group's
Agencies, Giles has overseen many acquisitions and
strategic investments and was the driving force behind the
creation of MISSION Shared Services, which he runs today.

SUE MULLEN

[xecutive Director

Sue is Chief Executive of Story and started her advertising
career in London before moving to Branns in Cirencester.
In 1990 she moved to Edinburgh to head up One Agency.
She left in 2002 and, alongside three colleagues, set

up Story, an award-winning communications agency.
Story was acquired by MISSION in 2007 and Sue joined
the Board in June 2012.

FIONA SHEPHERD

[ixecutive Director

Fiona is Chief Executive of April Six and has worked in the
technology industry for over 20 years, holding both Client
and agency positions, with some of the world’s largest
technology brands. Fiona was a founder of April Six and
has been instrumental in expanding the Agency from

its UK origins to its current position as a well-respected
global technology and mobility Agency with offices in

London, San Francisco, Munich and Singapore. Fiona joined
the Board in April 2010.
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Corporate Governance

- for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report
and the [inancial statements of The MISSION Group plc
(“MISSION™) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Direclors provide a separaie Corporate Governance
Report, which [orms part of this Report of the Directors.

Results and Dividends ‘Risks and Uncertainties

The Consolidated Income Statement shows the results The Strategic Report sets out the Group's principal

for the year. In view of the impact of COVID-19 on the ‘operating risks and uncertainties. As a communications
business, no dividends have been paid nor proposed Agency group, the main financial risks that arise

in relation to 2020. The 2019 final dividend of 1.53 pence from day-to-day activities are credit and currency risk.
per share, originally due for payment in July 2020 but Further details on the Group's capital and financial risk
deferred as part of the Group's cash preservation management are set out in Note 26.

actions during the peak of the pandemic, has been
paid in March 2021 due to the Group’s much improved
cash position at the end of 2020.

Directors

The following Directors held office during the year: Dylan Bogg
Jomes; Clifton
Barry Cook
Robert Day

Peter Fitzwilliam
Julian Hanson-Smith
Giles Lee

David Morgan

Sue Mullen

Andy Nash

Fiona Shepherd
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Options

The interests of the Directors and their families in the shares of the Company were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of 10p each

j‘ﬁ;& KA ST TN FATN

e
nsSmith:

Growth Share Scheme

‘A Growth Share Scheme was implemented on 21 February
2017, giving participants the opportunity to subscribe for
Ordinary A shares in The Mission Marketing Holdings Limited
{the "growth 'shcres") cit a nominal value. These could,
subject to continued employment, be exchanged for an
equivalent number of MISSION Ordinary Shares if MISSION's
share price were to equal or exceed 75p for at least 15 days
during the period from subscription up to 60 days from the '
announcement of the Group's financial results for the year .
ending 31 December 2019, if not, they would have no value.

Details of growth shares held by the Directors are aé_ follows:

Number of Ordinary A shares in The Mission Morl_(eting Ho

gE Na:Sh
SE L A

~ At the time the scheme was introduced, achieving

the target share price of 75p would have resulted in
dilution to existing shareholders of less than 7_% but
would also have represented an’incredse in market
capitalisation of over 80%. A total of 17 individuals were
invited to participate in the scheme, of which 10 were
Board members. The performance condition attached
to the scheme was met in June 2019 and,-dccordingly;
holders of grdwth shares were able to exchange shares
following the announcement of MISSION's 2019 results.

Annual veport for the year ended December 2020
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Share Options

The following unexercised options over shares were held by Directors:

All unexercised share options at 31 December - ) Share Capital - ' o

2020 are nil-cost options granted in 2015 under , . The issued share capital of the Company at

the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan, vesting in the date of this report is 91,015,897 Qrdinéry ' '
equal instalments in April 2020 and April 2021 subject , shares. The total number of voting rights in

only to continuing employment. None of the Directors - the Company is 91,015,897.

“exercised their entitlement to exercise options during : 4

the year. Following the introduction of the Growth - Directors’ indemnity Insurance

Share Scheme in February 2017, no nil-cost options - The Company purchases insurance to cover its

have subsequently been awarded to Directors. Directors and Officers against costs they may

A : ) incur in defending themselves in legal proceedings -

Substantial Shgre_holdmgs . instigated against them as a direct result of

Other than the Directors’ interests disclosed above, - duties carried out on behalf of the Company. .

as at 14 April 2021, notification had been received .
of the following interests in 3% or more of the issued _
share capital of the Company: ' The Directors are responsible for preparing the
g ; Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Compcﬁy law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial yeor.
Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the EU and the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with United
’ : Kingdom Genetally Accepted Accounting Practice
. : (United Kingdom Accounting Standards comprising
I . : ' Financial Reporting Standard FRS 102, the Financial
‘Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and”

. t gl e ’
Directors’ Responsibilities
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Republic of Ireland and applicable law). Under

company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by
the EU have been followed by the Group and
FRS 102 by the Parent Company, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

+ Prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show

and explain the Company's and the Group's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company
and the Group and to enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance

and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Group’s website. Legislation in

the United Kingdom governing the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may

differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider the annual report and

accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group and Company’s
position, performance, business model and strategy.

Auditors

PKF Francis Clark have indicated their willingness
to continue in office and, in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, it is
proposed that they be re-appointed auditors

to the Company for the ensuing year.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Group's
auditors are unaware. Each of the Directors

has taken all steps that they ought to have
taken as Directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and

to establish that the Group's auditors are aware
of that information.

Events Since the End of the Financial Year

On 6 April 2021, the Group agreed a new revolving
credit facility of £20m, expiring on 5 April 2024,
with an option to increase the facility by £5m and
by one year. Further details are provided in Note 19.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company’s Section 172 statement and other
details of stakeholder and employee engagement
are set out in the Stakeholder Engagement report.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {"SECR")

SECR is a sustainability regulation that came

into force on 1 April 2019. [t requires organisations
to publicly report on carbon emissions and energy
use, including UK energy use, associated greenhouse
gas emissions, and an appropriate intensity ratio.
SECR is applicable to all quoted companies and
large UK incorporated unquoted companies with
at least 250 employees or annual turnover greater
than £36m and annual balance sheet total greater
than £18m (two criteria or more must apply).
Accordingly, the 2020 information given below is
for The MISSION Group plc and Bray Leino Limited.

Annual report for the year ended December 2020
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C bosed electiicity.(Scope 2):emissions use the overage grid fusl.mix
i thie fegioh.or couhtry, where-thé electricity was purchased’and, consumed..
For SECR, l6Eaitioh hos

dis;rmondatdry;

The computations above have been calgulated
and verified'as-accurdté by Green Efement.
Limited‘and‘Compare Your Footprint Limited,
UK ahid the méthodology used:is in dccordance
with the GHG:Protocol Corporate Accounting -
ahd Repotting Standard 2014, '

(&-coac
iimplement their own environmental management
systems),and.additiondl MISSION:coripdries have

engl'bs'ed with this report:.

Cadbehdlf ot
Pater Fitzwilligm

‘We see SECR as a:wonderful opportunity:and

riot just:andther compliance exercise. 1t gives us
the chiance to asséss.our currenrit-emissions. arid

find ways.toreduce therm. In- 2020 we calculated,
‘our carbon:footprint for-the first'time and certified
BrayLeino a8 1SO 14001 comiplidiit. All MISSION

companies. are:signed, up to-Sustainability'Solved:

g platformto.ehable organisations to

the aim-of:achieving ISO 14001 compliance: We will

‘continu@ to comply with eAvirghmentatlegisiation
.and'to. moniter ahd meéasure:-our cénsumption

dota with:a view to:reduging our intensity ratio,

 Trezfficking - Sleterme
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‘The Group:supports the &ifmis of The Méderh
‘Slavery Act 2i '
knowingly deal'with any drganisation which

is:iconnected to slavery or human:trafficking:

y{“the Act”) and will never

‘Giver thie hature of the sefvices we. provide:

and-our High{stqn;dord of e"mp,loym'ent‘ practices,,
wé consider that we aré.at low risk of exposure:
to:stavery and human trafficking. We. are-not

-aware of-any.dreas 6f our-opérations and supply

chain likely. tolleadto abreach of the.Act.

seriel Meett
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Anotice.convening-the Annual General Meeting -

to'be held on Monday 14 Jurie 2021 at 12 rioon i§

e Bdard

1. April 2021
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Corporate Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of The MISSION Group plc *MISSION™) is collectively
accountable to the Company’s shareholders lor good corporate
governance, under the Chairmanship of David Morgan. As an
AlM-listed company, MISSION has chosen (o apply the Quoted
Companies Alliance (*QCA”) Corporate Governance Code

for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies (“the QCA Code”).

MISSION is a collective of creative Agencies led

by entrepreneurs who encourage anindependent
spirit. Our aims and ambitions are set out in

the Strategic Report. Unlike many other groups,

our Agencies, which have mainly come into the
Group via acquisition, retain their original leaders,
cultures and business practices. MISSION provides
them with the support infrastructure and economies
of scale of a multi-national group. We strongly
believe that this results in a highly personalised

and Client-centric culture which in turn leads to

an expanding and loyal Client base. The role of

the Board in establishing good corporate governance
in the context of this strategy requires making

sure not only that individual Agencies are targeted,
monitored and supported but, equally importantly,
that Agencies cooperate and collaborate with each
other to ensure we are providing the best possible
range of services to help our Clients succeed.
Indeed, it is this sense of cooperation and collaboration
which defines the culture of MISSION and much

of our time as a Board of Directors is devoted to
exploring how this collaboration is optimised.

Board of Directors

The Board has a balance of sector, financial and
public markets skills and experience. Brief profiles
of each member of the Board are set out on page
30. The CEOs of the Group's Agencies, most of
whom are the original founders of those Agencies
and who collectively represent a significant equity
shareholding, are our primary interface with our

Clients and consequently are strongly represented
at Board level. Each of our Executive Directors has
had a long career in marketing communications,
and brings strong and up to date sector experience,
with Dylan Bogg adding complementary creative
insight. Giles Lee, who has both an operational and
financial background, adds further skills in the role
of Commercial Director, with responsibility for the
MISSION Shared Services initiative.

Our Chief Financial Officer and two independent
Non-Executive Directors provide financial and public
market skills and experience and, together with
myself, represent the committee responsible for
corporate governance compliance and ensuring
that a strong independent voice is present during
Board discussions. The roles of Chair and Chief
Executive are separate, with James Clifton, as Group
Chief Executive, having responsibility for implementing
the Group's strategy, driving growth, building our
brand and delivering sustainable shareholder value.

As well as fulfilling the role of CFO, Peter Fitzwilliam

was also the Company Secretary during the year.

Whilst the QCA Code recommends that the company
secretary is not also an Executive Director, Peter’s strong
background in governance and independence of
character and judgement meant that we saw no need
to separate the roles. However, during 2021, Peter will be
succeeded as Company Secretary by Michael Langford,
the Group's Financial Controller, who is a Chartered
Accountant with suitable training and who has previously
assisted Peter in company secretarial matters.
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Our Non-Executive Directors are Julian Hanson-Smith
and Andy Nash, both independent by virtue of having
no executive responsibilities within the Group.

Both Julian and Andy bring a strong independent
voice to Board discussions but also with an insight into
our sector, having worked in it previously. Julian, who is
also the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director,
has significant business experience, both in marketing
services, having co-founded Financial Dynamics

(now FT! Consulting) in 1986, and also as a private
equity investor, having co-founded Iceni Capital,
specialising in UK-based business services companies.
Andy started his professional career with Cadbury
Schweppes, in their marketing team. He has extensive
experience across both public and private companies
and currently chairs Vaultex UK, the country’s leading
manager of cash on behalf of the Bank of England,
owned jointly by HSBC and Barclays.

Formal evaluations of Board effectiveness are

held on a periodic basis. The most recent evaluation
took place during 2018 and involved a combination
of self-evaluation and one-to-one interviews
with individual Board members to seek objective
feedback on the balance of skills, behaviours and
effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Chair
and other Board members. The next evaluation is
due to take place during 2021.

The Directors are collectively responsible for the
strategic direction, investment decisions and effective
control of the Group. As part of its recurring business,
the Board receives a financial summary of the Group's
performance early in the month, comparing revenue
and profit for each Agency with the prior year and
budgets set at the beginning of the year and any

subsequent re-forecasts. This summary is supplemented

by written monthly reports from each CEO and a
subsequent report from the Group CFO summarising
the Group's balance sheet and working capital
performance. Separate reports are received in
connection with non-recurring matters, including
written strategic and financial appraisals of potential
acquisition opportunities. The Board is satisfied that
it receives information of a quality and to a timetable
that permits it to discharge its duties.

TGRS S SO RIS S RN

All Directors are subject to election by Shareholders
at the first opportunity after their appointment and
are required to seek re-election every three years.

The Board has established three formal committees
to deal with specific aspects of the Group's affairs.

Audit & Risk Committee .

The Audit & Risk Committee consists of the

two independent Non-Executive Directors,

with Julian Hanson-Smith as Chair. The Committee
considers matters relating to the reporting

of results, financial controls and the cost and
effectiveness of the audit process. The terms

of reference of the Committee can be found in

the Governance section of our website. it aims

to meet at least twice a year with the Group's
external auditors in attendance. Other Directors
attend as required. The Committee receives from
the Group's auditors and considers two detailed
reports: the Audit Planning Report which sets out
the auditors’ proposed audit approach, and the
Audit Completion Report, towards the conclusion
of the audit fieldwork, which highlights the main
matters considered and arising from the audit work.

The main meeting of the Committee each year
reviews the financial results and disclosures in the
annual report. This meeting is held shortly before
the annual results are published and considers in
detail with the Group's auditors the principal areas
of subjective judgement and any other matters
brought to the Committee’s attention by the Group's
auditors. The main matters considered each year
are any indications of possible goodwill and/or
investment impairment and the application

of the Group's revenue recognition policies.

In 2020, the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s
going concern assumptions and goodwill carrying
values received additional consideration. In view
of the significant uncertainty created by COVID-19,
additional disclosures have been provided in the
Directors’ Report and the Notes to the financial
statements where appropriate.

Annual report for the year ended December 2020

A R R I B S AR s IR DY



The Committee is satisfied that the Group's
auditors, PKF Francis Clark, have been objective
and independent of the Group. The Group's
auditors performed non-audit services for the
Group as outlined in Note 6. The nature of this
work was again predominantly corporate finance
advice and financial due diligence in relation to
prospective acquisitions and not related to areas
of significant judgement in the accounts. The work
was not carried out by the audit team, the value
of this work was not significant in relation to the
size of the audit fee, the basis for charging was
based on hourly involvement and no fees were
contingent on outcome. As a consequence,

the Committee is satisfied that the auditors’
objectivity and independence was not impaired
by their non-audit services.

Remuneration Committee

As outlined in the Strategic Report, strong Client
relationships and quality of staff are key factors

in the success of MISSION, and strenuous efforts

are made to retain and motivate our leadership
teams. The Board maintains a policy of providing
executive remuneration packages that will attract,
motivate and retain Directors and senior executives
of the calibre necessary to deliver the Group's
growth strategy and to reward them for enhancing
shareholder value. The Remuneration Committee
consists of the two independent Non-Executive
Directors, with Andy Nash as Chair. The Committee
determines the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and makes recommendations to the Board with
regard to remuneration policy and related matters.
The Committee meets as and when required and '

its terms of reference can be found in the Governance
section of our website. The remuneration and terms
and conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors are determined by the Board. No Director
is involved in setting his or her own remuneration.

The Committee reviews the components
of each Executive Director’s remuneration
package annually. During the year, these
packages consisted of three elements:

+ basic salary and benefits,

+ performance related bonus linked to the
delivery of profit targets, and

+ share-based incentives.

With regard to remuneration policy, the Committee
gives specific consideration each year to the nature
and quantum of incentive arrangements to ensure
they remain relevant and effective for the retention
of key staff, including not just Executive Directors

but also senior staff within the Group’s Agencies.

This includes setting the profit targets which trigger
annual performance-related cash bonuses and
approving the allocation of incentives to individuals.
The Committee undertook a detailed review of the
Group's incentives during 2018, implementing various
changes as a result (as set out in last year's annual
report) and no further refinements were considered
necessary in 2020. The Remuneration Committee

is actively considering an appropriate incentive

and retention arrangement to introduce following the
maturity of the 2017 Growth Share Scheme in April 2020.

The Committee reviews annually whether or not profit
targets have been met to trigger performance-related
bonuses to Directors and the senior management
inindividual Agencies. This evaluation considers both
the Group's financial performance and individual
Agency performance, and takes place alongside the
finalisation of the annual results.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are included in Note 7.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of me, as the
Committee Chairman, and the two Non-Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for

reviewing and making proposals to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and meets as necessary.
The terms of reference of the Committee are available
on request. The Committee did not meet during 2020.
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Summary of Directors’ Attendance

Executive Directors are expected to make a full-time
commitment to the Group, whilst Non-Executive
Directors are generally expected to be available to
participate in person at Board meetings and meetings
of the Remuneration, Audit and Nomination Committees.
In addition, they are expected to be available to discuss
matters between these formal meetings. o

Shareholder Communication

We engage in a dialogue with our shareholders

and prospective shareholders via formal meetings
and informal telephone and email contact. In addition,
we provide comprehensive information to investors

on our website, including contact information and
answers to frequently asked questions.

Formal meetings with institutional fund managers
and wealth managers take place throughout the
year but are concentrated on the periods following
our interim and full year results announcements.

We receive collated feedback from these meetings
via our NOMAD, Shore Capital. In addition, | speak
to representatives of our larger institutional investors
between these formal set pieces to make sure the
dialogue continues and that we understand their

NANCE REPORT
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Where diary clashes or Client commitments conflict

with formal meeting dates, the matters to be addressed
during meetings are discussed with the relevant

Director both before and after the relevant meeting. .
We estimate that the time commitment required from
our Non-Executive Directors is roughly 3 days per month.

expectations. Private investors don't have the
benefit of regular formal meetings, but we make
sure we are available to meet shareholders at
our Annual General Meeting, COVID restrictions
permitting, and we often continue a dialogue
with them via email. The results of proxy votes
cast at Annual General Meetings can be found
in the Investors section of our website.

James Clifton, Peter Fitzwilliam and [ are, between
us, the first point of contact for any queries raised
by shareholders but, should we fail to resolve

any queries, or where a Non-Executive Director

is more appropriate, the Senior Independent
Director, Julian Hanson-Smith, is available to
meet shareholders. | am encouraged to note .
that, to date, no such request has been recéived_._
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Corporate Culture

The Group has established a statement of corporate
values in order to establish clearly for all stakeholders
what we stand for and how we behave. These values
are: invested, accountable, connected, progressive
and human. However, culture is defined as the
internal expression of brand purpose. In the same
document we stated our brand purpose or Vision

as "the preferred creative partner for real business
growth.” This was supported by a summary of our
personality: "We are a challenger brand. So we

try harder. We look for solutions where others see
problems. We are connected by the ambition to
deliver amazing results for our Clients. We are driven
by the entrepreneurial spirit that runs through our
veins. We celebrate diversity and treat others how
we would wish to be treated ourselves.” This is the
culture to which we aspire.

Risk Management

Whilst the Directors are collectively responsible for
the effective control of the Group, the Audit & Risk
Committee has primary responsibility for the oversight
of risk. The principal risks and uncertainties facing

the Group are set out in more detail in the Strategic
Report and the Non-Executive Directors periodically
consider whether or not this remains up to date.

Clients and staff represent the key resources

and relationships on which our business relies.
Primary responsibility for maintaining strong Client
relationships and retaining key staff lies with the
Agency CEOs and this is monitored via written
monthly reports and Board attendance. Their day
to day involvement with Clients provides the Board
with strong and up to date feedback from this vital
stakeholder group, including lessons to be learnt
from unsuccessful new businéss pitches. Periodically,
a new service is developed as a result of this
feedback loop. It has also been from Client feedback
that we have embarked on our international
expansion ~ going where our Clients want us to be.

Potential acquisitions and changes in incentive
and rewards systems, designed to motivate and
retain key staff, are considered by the full Board
when it meets in person, or via regular informal
contact between meetings.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the
Group maintains a system of internal financial
controls. The objective of the system is to safeguard
Group assets, ensure proper accounting records
are maintained and that the financial information
used within the business and for publication

is timely and reliable. Any such system can

only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material loss or misstatement.

All day to day operational decisions are taken
initially by the Executive Directors, in accordance
with the Group's strategy. The Executive

Directors are also responsible for initiating
commercial transactions and approving payments,
save for those relating to their own employment.

The formal matters reserved for the Board

include certain key internal controls: the specific
levels of delegated authority and the segregation
of duties; the prior approval of all acquisitions;

the review of pertinent commercial, financial

and other information by the Board on a regular
basis; the prior approval of all significant strategic
decisions; and maintaining a formal strategy for
business activities.

Assurance over risk management is obtained

from the establishment of management policies
and controls, regular review of individual Agency
financial performance, and the external audit
process. The Board does not consider it necessary
to have a separate internal audit function at the
present time; the internal audit of internal financial
controls forms part of the responsibilities of the
Group's finance function.

On behalf of the board
David Morgan
Chairman

14 April 2021

Annual veport for the year ended December 2020

Ay




2

Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the Members of The MISSION Group plc

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of

The MISSION Group plc (the "Group”) for the

year ended 31 December 2020, which comprise

the Consolidated Statements of Income,

the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the related notes including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law

and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and
of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
{UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described

in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied
to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment

of the group’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included:

+ Understanding the impact of COVID-19 on the group.

+ Reviewing and challenging management'’s
assessment of going concern and key assumptions
{including assessment at the planning stage of
the audit process). Our work included assessing the
timing and amount of turnover and related cashfiows
in the forecast models. We also tested the integrity
and mathematical accuracy of the models used.

+ Reviewing and assessing the appropriateness
of management's sensitivity analysis including
changes in turnover and related cashflows.

+ Assessing the amount of bank facilities and
expected headroom based on the forecast
over the next 12 months.

+ Evaluating the reliability of the forecast through
discussion with management, review of post
year end trading and considering the historic
reliability of forecasts compared to actual results.

+ Reviewing going concermn related disclosures in the
financial statements to ensure they are appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have
not identified any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
group's ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of

the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether
or not due to fraud) we identified, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Revenue Recognition

The Group's primary income streams are outlined

in the accounting policies section. We identified
that the revenue recognition risk relates particularly
to the correct treatment of project fees, where the
service spdns the year end. Assessing the timing

of recognition and valuation of such work involves
estimates and can be complex.

Response And Conclusion
Our audit work included:

- Assessing and challenging the revenue
recognition policies adopted by the Group
to confirm they are appropriate in the context
of the business and in accordance with IFRS.

+ Reviewing a sample of open jobs at the year
end across the Group and testing accuracy,
completeness and cut off.

+ Reconciling open job reports at the year
end to revenue and profit recognised.

+ Assessing and challenging on a sample
basis whether revenue and profit
recognised on open jobs is complete
and appropriately valued.

+ Evaluating the accuracy of accrued
income in the previous year against
actual outcomes to determine whether
management’s estimations have beenreliable.

As a result of the procedures performed,
we are satisfied that revenue has been
correctly recorded.

Key Audit Matter
Gooadwill Impairment

The impairment review of the Group's carrying
value of Goodwill arising on consolidation

is one of the main areas of estimation.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying value

of goodwill in the Group balance sheet was
£92m (2019: £92m). We identified that the audit
risk relates to ensuring that management's
impairment review is robust and reliable in
identifying potential impairment, and that

the assumptions made are reasonable.

The key assumptions used by management
in assessing value in use are:

- Budgets and forecasts for the next 4 years.

- The discount rate applied (the Group's
weighted average cost of capital - WACC).

* Revised long-term growth rate.
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Response And Conclusion
Our audit work included: e . v
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applied by management in their
- impairment reviews. '
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growth rate to'independent market
data to confirm itis cpprop'riate'.
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+ Assessing and challenging management'’s
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and calculations. .
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on short term growth forecasts'and™ - =~ !
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carrying value.
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comparing actual results ogéinSt past
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OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY ‘

Misstatements, including omissions,

are considered to be material if individually .
orin aggregate, they could reasonably -

be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of the

financial statements. We use quantitative ':s:"s::q_tem%\%% 4

thresholds of materiality, togetherwith - - - - ] gj't"fdc"“"w.,‘
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timing and extent of our audit procedures . £76,000 - £263,000
: , .

and in evaluating the resufts of our work. )
Based on our professional judgement,
we determined materiality for the financial . -

statements as a whole as follows:
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

We planned and performed our audit by
obtaining an understanding of the Group
and its environment, including the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in
which it operates. The Group comprises the
following trading companies:

+ 15 UK subsidiary companies;

- 1wholly owned US based subsidiary;

» 1 wholly owned Germany based subsidiary;
- 3 wholly owned Asian subsidiaries;

+ A 70% owned Asian sub group comprising
5 locally incorporated companies; and

+ 2 UK holding companies.

Of the Group's 27 reporting components,

we subjected 9 to full scope audits, of which

S were performed by component auditors,

and 3 to specific audit procedures. The remaining
components were subject to analytical review
procedures, carried out by the Group audit

team. Those components subject to audit

and specific audit procedures cover 76% of

the Group’sconsolidated operating income

and 79% of the Group's absolute operating result
(absolute result does not distinguish between
profit or loss at subsidiary level). Our audit work
at the component level is executed at levels of
materiolity appropriate for such components,
which range from 26% to 68% of Group materiality.

Subsidiaries where component auditors were
used provided 3% and 6% of the Group’s
consolidated operating income and absolute
operating loss respectively. The Group team
issued specific instructions to component auditors
covering the significant risks identified at Group

level, as detailed above, and approved materiality.

The Group audit team communicated with the
component auditors throughout the audit process
and reviewed documentation produced.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. f we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement
in the financial statements themselves. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED
BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken
in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements

Annual report for the year ended December 2020

1S



L6

Financial Statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:
+ adequate accounting records have not
been kept, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Directors’
responsibilities statement set out on pages
34 and 35, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements,

the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guaranteethat an audit conducted

in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect

a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individuallyor in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances

of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements

in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework applicable to the group

and the industry in which it operates. We identified
the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations as relating to breaches around
health and safety and General Data Protection
Regulation. We also considered those laws

and regulations that have a direct impact on

the preparation of the financial statements

such as financial reporting legislation (including
the Companies Act 2006}, taxation legislation

and Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS)
legislation. We considered the extent to which

any non-compliance with these laws and regulations
may have a negative impact on the group's

ability to continue trading and the risk of a material
misstatement in the financial statements.
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We also evaluated management's incentives

and - opportunities for fraudulent manipulation

of thefinancial statements and determined

that the principal risks rélated to the misstatement
of the result for the year, goodwill impairment

and revenue recogriition.

Based on this understanding we designed
our audit procedures to identify irregularities.
Ourprocedures involved the following:

- Both goodwillimpairment and revenue
recognition were assessed as Key Audit
Matters and our work in respect of them
is detailed above.

+ We made enquiries of senior management
as to their knowledge of any non-compliance
or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulafions that could affect the financial
statements. As part of these enquiries we
also discussed with management whether
there have been any known instances of
material fraud, of which there were none.

- We identified the individuals with responsibility
for ensuring compliance with laws and
regulations and discussed with them the
procedures and policies in place.

» Our CJRS work included substantive
testing of management’s calculations
and review of supporting paperwork.

- We reviewed minutes of meetings of
Senior Management and those charged
with governance.

- We challenged the assumptions and
judgements made by management in
its significant accounting estimates.

+ We audited the risk of management override
of controls, including through substantively
testing journal entries and other adjustments
for appropriateness, and evaluating the
business rationale of significant transoctions
outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities is
available on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Company's
shareholders, as a bodly, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that

we might state to the Company's shareholders
those matters we are required to state to them
in an audit report and for no other purpose.
To-the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Compony's
shareholders as a body for our audit work,

for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Glenn Nicol (Senior Statutory Auditor)

PKF Francis Clark

Statutory Auditor ‘) kF F‘?J\CLI C(é/'

Centenary House
Peninsula Park

Rydon Lane

Exeter, EX2 7XE
14 April 2021
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Noies Lo the Consolidated Financial Stalements

1. Principal Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Group's financial statements consolidate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31 December each year. They have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union and
on the historical cost basis. The functional currency of
the Group is Pounds Sterling and the level of rounding
applied is £'000.

Basis of consolidation

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed

of during the year are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring accounting
policies used into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Going concern

The Company's available banking facilities provide
headroom against the Group’s projected cash

flows and the Directors accordingly consider that

it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these financial statements.
Further information concerning the impact of COVID-19
is provided in the Chief Financial Officer's Report.

Turnover and revenue recognition policy

The Group's operating subsidiaries carry out a range
of different activities. The following policies apply
consistently across subsidiaries.

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation
is satisfied, in accordance with the terms of the
contractual arrangement. Where there are contracts
with a variety of performance obligations that are
distinct, an element of the transaction price is allocated
to each performance obligation and recognised as
revenue as and when that performance obligation

is satisfied. Revenue is allocated to each of

the performance obligations based on relative
standalone selling prices. Typically, performance
obligations are satisfied over time as services are
rendered. The nature of the work is almost always
such that it relates to facts and circumstances
that are specific to the Client, with the result that
the work performed does not create an asset
with alternative use to the Group. Therefore,

in accordance with IFRS 15, even if the Client will
receive the benefits of the Group's performance
only when the Client receives the piece of work,
the performance obligation is regarded as being
satisfied over time. The Group is generally entitled
to payment for work performed to date.

Contracts are typically short-term in nature
and do not include any significant financing
components. The Group is generally paid in
arrears for its services and invoices are typically
payable within 30 to 60 days.

Where performance obligations have been
satisfied and the recorded turnover exceeds
amounts invoiced to Clients, the excess is classified
as accrued income (within Trade and other
receivables). Accrued income is a contract asset
and is transferred to trade receivables when the
right to consideration is unconditional and billed
per the terms of the contractual agreement.

Where amounts invoiced to Clients exceed recorded
turnover, because performance obligations have
not yet been satisfied, the excess is classified as
deferred income (within Trade and other payables).
These balances are considered contract liabilities.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
permitted by IFRS 15 to not disclose the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as of the end

of the reporting period as contracts typically have
an original expected duration of a year or less.

The amount of revenue recognised depends on
whether the Group acts as principal or agent.
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Third party costs are included in revenue when the
Group acts as principal with respect to the goods

or services provided to the Client and are excluded
when the Group acts as agent, by reference to
whether or not the Group controls the relevant good
or service before it is transferred to the Client.

The Group has not recognised any significant costs
incurred to obtain or fulfil a Client contract as assets
on the balance sheet. Costs to obtain a contract are
typically expensed as incurred as the contracts are
generally short term in nature.

Turnover represents fees, commissions, rechargeable
expenses and sales of materials performed subject
to specific contracts.

Further details on revenue recognition are detailed
by activity below:

(i) Advertising and ad hoc marketing campaigns

This typically involves fees for strategic planning
and creative concepts through to execution and
delivery of final campaigns. Revenue may consist

of various arrangements, but typically comprises
retainer fees or fixed price contracts, both of which
are recognised over time. Retainer fees are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.
For fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised
based on the actual service provided to the end

of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided. This is typically determined
based on third party costs incurred to date and
actual labour hours devoted to date relative to the
total expected costs and labour hours.

(i) Website, portal or application design and build (Digital)

The Group derives revenue from designing and
building websites, portals and applications under
fixed price contracts. Revenue is typically recognised
over time, determined by applying the hours devoted
to date as a percentage of total hours expected.

(iii} Software development (Digital)

This revenue stream involves the supply of software
licences and aftersales support. If billed as a single
fixed price fee, each of these services is accounted

for as a separate performance obligation, the transaction

price allocated to each being determined by the
labour hours and cost required to supply each service.

Revenue attributable to the provision of the software
is recognised at a point in time when the software
licence is made available for use by the Client.
Revenue attributable to the aftersales support is
recognised monthly on a straight-line basis over

the period support is to be provided. In some cases,
the contract might also cover the provision of data
migration and training services, but each of these

is separately billed, the revenue being recognised
over time, determined by applying the hours devoted
to date as a percentage of total hours expected.

{(iv)] Media buying

Revenue is derived from identifying the Client's
media requirements and managing and placing
orders for the appropriate media. Revenue is
typically recognised at the point in time the
media is aired or on the date of publication.

(v) Exhibitions, events and conferences

Revenue is derived from the design, planning and
supply of exhibition stands, events and conferences.
Revenue is typically recognised over time based

on third party costs incurred to date and actual
labour hours devoted to date relative to the total
expected costs and labour hours.

(vi) Learning and training

Revenue is in the form of fixed price fees from
planning and designing training courses and

from performing training courses. Specific training is
recognised at a point in time on the date the training
takes place. If the service provided includes planning
and designing the training course and material,

then revenue would be attributed to this performance
obligation and recognised over time based on third
party costs incurred to date and actual labour hours
devoted to date relative to the total expected costs
and labour hours.

{vii) Public Relations

PR revenue is typically derived from retainer fees
and fixed price fees for services to be performed
subject to specific agreement. Revenue under these
arrangements is earned over time, in accordance
with the terms of the contractual arrangement.
Retainer fee revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period covered by the fee. For ad hoc
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fixed price projects, the Group generally applies the
hours devoted to date as a percentage of total hours
as the basis for recognising revenue.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Gooawill

Goodwill arising from the purchase of subsidiary
undertakings and trade acquisitions represents
the excess of the total cost of acquisition over the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary acquired. The total cost of acquisition
represents both the unconditional payments made
in cash and shares on acquisition and an estimate
of future contingent consideration payments to
vendors in respect of earn-outs.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed annually
for impairment. Goodwill impairment is assessed

by comparing the carrying value of goodwill for
each cash-generating unit to the future cash flows,
discounted to their net present value using an
dappropridte discount rate, derived from the relevant
underlying assets. Where the net present value

of future cash flows is below the carrying value of
goodwill, an impairment adjustment is recognised

in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

Other intangible assets

Costs associated with the development of

identifiable software products where it is probable

that the economic benefits will exceed the costs

of development are recognised as intangible assets.
These assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and are amortised over periods of between
3 and 5 years. Amortisation of software development
costs is included within operating expenses.

Other intangible assets separately identified as

part of an acquisition are amortised over periods of
between 3 and 10 years, except certain brand names
which are considered to have an indefinite useful

life. The value of such brand names is not amortised,
but rather an annual impairment test is applied and
any shortfall in the present value of future cash flows
derived from the brand name versus the carrying
value is recognised in profit and loss. Amortisation and
impairment charges are excluded from headline profit.

Contingent consideration payments

The Directors manage the financial risk associated
with making business acquisitions by structuring the
terms of the acquisition, wherever possible, to include
an element of the total consideration payable for the
business which is contingent on its future profitability
(i.e. earn-out). Contingent consideration is initially
recognised at its estimated fair value based on

a reasonable estimate of the amounts expected to
be paid. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that arise from additional information
obtained during the first twelve months from the
acquisition date, about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date, are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. The fair value of contingent
consideration is reviewed annually and subsequent
changes in the fair value are recognised in profit

or loss but excluded from headline profits.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and judgements
concerning the future and the resulting estimates
may, by definition, vary from the actual results.
The Directors considered the critical accounting
estimates and judgements used in the financial
statements and concluded that the main areas
of judgement are, in order of significance:

Potential impairment of goodwill

The potential impairment of goodwill is based

on estimates of future cash flows derived from
the financial projections of each cash-generating
unit over an initial three-year period

and assumptions about growth thereafter,
discussed in more detail in Note 11.

Contingent payments in respect of acquisitions

Contingent consideration, by definition,

depends on uncertain future events. At the time

of purchasing a business, the Directors use the
financial projections obtained during due diligence
as the basis for estimating contingent consideration.
Subsequent estimates benefit from the greater
insight gained in the post-acquisition period and
the business’ track record of financial performance.
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Revenue-recognition policies in respect of contracts
which straddle the year end

Estimates of revenue to be recognised on contracts
which straddle the year end are typically based

on the amount of time so far committed to those
contracts by reference to timesheets in relation to
the total estimated time to complete them.

Valuation of intangible assets on acquisitions

Determining the separate components of intangible
assets acquired on acquisitions is a matter of
judgement exercised by the Directors. Brand names,
customer relationships and intellectual property

rights are the most frequently identified intangible
assets. When considering the valuation of intangible
assets on acquisitions, a range of methods is undertaken
both for identifying intangibles and placing valuations
on them. The valuation of each element is assessed
by reference to commonly used techniques, such as
“relief from royalty” and "excess earnings” and to
industry leaders and competitors. Estimating the
length of Client retention is the principal uncertainty
and draws on historic experience.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of the number of shares that will eventually vest.

The fair value of nil-cost share options is measured
by use of a Black Scholes model on the grounds
that there are no market-related vesting conditions.
The fair value of Growth Shares is measured by use
of a Monte Carlo simulation model on the grounds
that they are subject to market-based conditions
{the future share price of the Company).

Foreign currencies

‘Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated

into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies
arising from normal trading activities are transiated into
sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the

date of the transaction. Exchange differences

are reflected in the profit or loss accordingly.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

The income statements of overseas subsidiary
undertakings are translated at average
exchange rates and the year-end net assets
of these companies are translated at year-end
exchange rates. Exchange differences arising
from retranslation of the opening net assets
are reported in the Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided on ail property, plant and equipment

at rates calculated to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value based on prices prevailing
at the date of acquisition, of each asset evenly over
its expected useful economic life, as follows:

Short leasehold property Period of the lease

Motor vehicles 25% per annum
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 10-33% per annum

Computer equipment 25-33% per annum

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the Group's balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Issue costs are
offset against the proceeds of such instruments.
Financial liabilities are released to income when
the liability is extinguished.

Leases

The Group recognises a right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short
term leases (defined as leases with a term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives are spread over the term
of the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of all future lease
payments, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease,
or if this rate is not readily determined, the incremental
borrowing rate of the Group. Lease payments included
in the measurement of the lease liability include:
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- fixed and variable lease payments, less any
lease incentives;

- the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

+ the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability (using the effective interest
rate method) and by reducing the carrying amount
by any lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability and makes

a corresponding adjustment to the related right of

use asset whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option; or

- alease contract is modified and the lease modification

* is not accounted for as a separate lease

in which case the liability is remeasured by discounting

the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group has applied the practical expedient that
allows lessees not to account for rent concessions

as lease modifications if they are a direct consequence
of COVID-19.

The right of use assets are presented as a separate
line in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The right
of use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day of the

lease and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses. Whenever the Group incurs

an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a
leased asset, restore the site on which it is located

or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,

a provision is recognised and measured under |AS 37.
The costs are included in the related right of use asset.

Right of use assets are depreciated over the shorter
period of lease term and useful! life of the underlying
asset, unless a lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset or the cost of the right of use assets

reflects that the Group expects to exercise a

purchase option, in which case the right of use asset

is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at commencement of the lease.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the camrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used

in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Where material intangible assets are recognised on
acquisition which will be amortised over their useful
lives, a deferred tax liability is also recognised and
released against income over the corresponding period.

Government COVID-19 Support

The Group has recognised a reduction in operating
expenses where government schemes to assist
companies during the COVID-19 pandemic have
resulted in grants or subsidies that will never have
to be repaid. Details of such amounts are included
in Note 7. Where the government assistance

only involves the deferral of certain tax payments,
these are charged to the income statement as
normal in the period they are incurred and a liability
is recognised in the balance sheet for any payments
deferred at the balance sheet date.

New standards, interpretations and amendments
to existing standards

There are no new or amended standards or interpretations
that impact the Group's financial statements.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new standards, amendments, and interpretations
to existing standards have been published by the IASB but
are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by
the Group. No new standards in issue but not yet effective
are expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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2. Segmental Information

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the disaggregation of revenue into categories that depict *
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors..The Board.
has considered how the Group's revenue might be disaggregated in order to meet the requirements of IFRS 15 and has
concluded that the activity cnd geogrophlcol segmentot:on disclosures set out below represent the most adppropriate
cotegones of disaggregation. The ‘Board considers that neither differences between types of Clients, sales channels
and markets nor differences betwéen contract duration and the timing of transfer of goods or services are sufficiently
significant to require further disaggregation.

For.management purposes the Giolp monitored the performance of its separate operating units, each of which carries .
out arange of activities, as a single business segment. However, since different activities have different revenue APL

charoctenstlcs the Group's tumover and operating income has been disaggregated below to provide additional beneflt
o recders of these financial stctements o
(A

3
Followmg the-implementation of a Shared-Services function from the start of 2018 and the resulting transfer of- certcm~——-— -
Agenqy;specuflcscontrocts onto‘centvrclly—‘_manqg_ed arrangements, a significant portion of the total operating costs are ___
now centrally managed and segment information is therefore now only presented down to the operating income level.

3

(L2 L4} “[3vg) idek, Tleatp i
As controcts typlcully have an original expected duration of less than one year, the full amount of the occrued mcome

Vo

bolonce at the begmnmg of the yedr is recognised inrevenue during the year. All media buylng turnover is recognlsed ?_ R
at’a point in time. Virtually aII other turnover from continuing operations is recognised over time. vy s g e T

- e A e am— 4 memme e e —— — - ——— T T e —— —a—m

Assets and liabilities are not split between activities.

* +
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Geographical segmentation

The following table p(ovideé an analysis of the Group'’s operating income by region of activity:

3. Reconciliation of Headline Profit to Reported Profit

of . P SRR PR

The Board believes that headline profits, which eliminate &ertdin amounts from the reported figures, provide a better
understanding of the underlying trading of the Group. The odj,ustme’nts to reported profits generally fallintothree; ;. .-
cgtegories: acquisition-related items, start-up costs and psjofit / loss on investments.

Exceptional restructuring costs consist of redundancy and property closure costs in response to the CO\/ID-19 pandemic.

Start-up costs derive from organically started businesses and comprise the trading losses of such entities until the earlier .

- of two years from commencement or when they show evidence of becoming sustainably profitable. Start-up costs in 2020
relate to Story's new venture in Leeds, April Six's new venture in Germany and the launch of Alive in Asia. Start-up costs in
2019 related to the Leeds and Germany ventures, and trading losses at April Six's China operation.
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The movement in fair.value of contingent consideration relates to a net upward (2019: upward) revision in the estimate

payable to vendors of businesses acquired in prior years. Acquisition transaction costs relate to professional'feesin -+ &
connection with acquisitions made or contemplated. )

5./Net Finance Costs
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6. Profit or Loss Before. deatipn

" Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging / (crediting):
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7. Employee information

The average number of Directors and staff employed by the Group during the year analysed by segment, was as follows:

The aggregate empioyee costs of these persons included in operating expenses were as follows: B A RO

The Group operates twenty (2019: nineteen) defined contribution pension schemes. The pension cost charge for the year

represents contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. At the gnq_of the financial year outstanding contributions
amounted to £164,000 (2019: £150,000). ' \ ( ‘
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Directors’' Remuneration

Directors’' remuneration is derived from their role as either a Board member of MISSION or as an Executive Director of ,6ne )
of the Group's Agencies. Remuneration for the year was as follows {all amounts in £000):

Notes:

* The be'rforrhonc'e related payments to Peter Fitzwilliam and Robert Day were for the d’chievemerit of performance
conditions in 2018 and 2019 respectively and were further conditional on certain criteria which were satisfied in 2020.
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Factors Affecting the Tax Charge for the Current Year:

The tax assessed for the year is higher (2019: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The differences are:
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In view of the trading performance during 2020, affected substantially by COVID- 19 no interim dividend was paid during

2020 and no final dividend is proposed. The 2019 final dividend of 1.53 pence per share was proposed in the 2019 ahtﬁ"dol

report and accounts but subsequently deferred due to the pnonty to preserve cash dunng the pandemic! Follownng the »uJ

much |mproved net debt position at ot 31 December 2020 this dividend was 50|d in March 2021. In occordonce with. IFRS 5 xoT
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ANGIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

10. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data, determined in accordance with

the provisions of IAS 33: Earnings Per Share. !

A reconciliation of the profit after tax on a reported basis and the headline basis is given in Note 3.
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In’ accordcmce with the Group's occountmg policies; an annual |mpc|rment test is opplled to the carrying: volue of
goodwﬂl The review performed assesses whether the carrying value of goodwill is supported by the net present value .
of pro;ected cash flows derived from the underlying assets for each cash-generating unit ("CGU") drscounted usung

an crppropncrte discountrate. It i the Dlrectors judgement that each distinct Agency represents a CGU The rnrtral
projection period of four years mcludes the annual budget for each CGU: bdsed dn insight into Clrents plonned
marketing expenditure and targets for net new business growth derived from historical experience, and extropolcrtrons
of the budget in subsequent years based on known factors and estimated trends. The key assumptions used by ‘éalh
CGU concern revenue growth and, staffing levels.and different assumptions are made by different CGUs based.;: .- .. 007
on their individual circumstances. Beyond this initial projection period, a generic long term growth rate is o,ss_u'me'd,’ RS

- The forecasting of future cash flows was more challenging in 2020 given the heightened level of uncertainty created e
by COVID-19. The main assumptions cdopted were that economic actrvrty would remain su bdued in the frrst holf Cao ’j s

of 2021 but thct revenues would return to pre- pandemic levels in the second holf from which point the Group
would resume more normal Ievels of growth. Long term annual growth assumptions of 2% beyond 2034 were based
on information published by market analysts.

The resulting pre-tax cash flow forecasts were discounted using a rate of 8.20%, the average of the Weighted
Average Cost of Capital ("WACC") over the 9 years from 2012, when the current methodology of colculctlng WACC .
was first adopted (2019: 8 07%, the WACC at 31 December 2019).

. The reason for using this overcrge rather than the WACC at 31 December 2020 (the "2020 WACC") was to avoid any
distortion that may have been caused by the exceptional circumstances of COVID-19. Over the previous 8 years,
the Group's WACC was consistently within a range of 7.5% to 8.5% and the Directors felt it inappropriate to discount
cash flows that stretch into the indefinite future by using a potentially COVID-affected 2020 WACC.
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11. Intangible Assets - continued

The conclusion from using the above methodology was that no impairment in goodwill was required and is consistent
with the Directors’ assessment that any impairment thatvmig/hihgvve been caused by COVID-19is only temporary . : + =
in nature since all Agencies are predicting to return to pre—ipahd'efnic levels within the foreseeable future. No change
to this conclusion is reached as a result of the following independent changes in assumptions: a o_he year delay
in the achievement of 2021 budgets caused by COVID-19; any reduction in short term growth rates beyond 2021;
nil long term grthh rates; d 1% increase in discount rate. The only change in assumptions that would resuit in a material”
impdirment in the €arrying value of the'Group's goodwillisian increase in discount rate of 3.5%, which managemerit do' -
nc;t'believe isa }easonobly possible ch‘cxngewih key cssqm.p,,tivor{. R o S PRI

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the following subsidiary companies and trade assets and is comprised of the ™7 "
following substantial components: - ., N R g e 9

*In 2020, the operations of April Six Proof Ltd were transferred into April Six Ltd. The goodwill of April Six Proof Ltd has
therefore been transferred into April Six Ltd. ' ' o ‘
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Additions of £696,000 (2019: £848,000) in the year include costs associated with the development of.identifiable...
software products that are expected to generate economic benefits in excess of the costs of development

BIGARAN A L8 il . Lot ai ST T i L

Included within the value of intangible assets is an amount of £783,000 (2019 £783,000) relotlng to trade names of .
busmesses acquired, which are deemed to have indefinite useful lives. These trade names have attained recognmon

in the marketplace and the componles acquired will continue to operate under the relevant trade names, which will
play-a role'in developlng and sustcumng customer relatlonshlps for the foreseedble future. As such, it |s the Dlre'ctors S
judgement that the useful life of these trade names is consndered to be indefinite dnd as such dre con5|dered as port
of the annual impairment revnew R o o R ‘

y§) .

Intangible dssets include an amount of ESLI’:,OOC (201§: £617,bOO) ;elutihg to the krow trade ndme, which has attained’
~ recognition in the marketplace and plays a role in attracting and retaining Clients. This value will be amortised over
the next 7 years (2019: 8 years). Also included is an dhount of £1,022,000 (2019: £1,336,000) relating to krow customer
relationships. krow has developed a base of customers to whom the Group would expect to continue seiling inthe
future. The remaining useful life of these customer relationships is deemed to be 3 yedrs’(2019: 4 years) and the value

- will be amortised over this period. '
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12. Subsidiaries

The Group's principal trading subsidiaries are listed below AII subsidiaries are 100% owned and all are incorporated

in the United Kingdom, except for Pothfmdr Ltd, which'is 80 ; owned, Mongoose Promotions Ltd, which is 75% owned,
..and Bray Leino Splosh Pte. Ltd, Wthh |s 70 ; owned and lncorporoted in Singapore. A full list of all Group companies
at 31 December 2020 can be found i in Note 42 to the Compcny Fmancncll Stotements
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14. Right of Use Assets

The Group leases several assets including property, office equipment, computer equipment and motor vehicles.

PP AR )
) @%’
o

In 2019 the Group transferred its Learning activities into an established company, Fenturi Limited, in exchange for a 25%
shareholding in that company. In 2020 the Group invested further in' Fenturi. Fenturi is a Bristol-based digital learning’
agency with positive previous associations with Bray Leino. '

.
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" An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the prbvisién of services of £97,000% > &3t v
(2019 -£82 ,000). The estimated irrecoverable omount is. arrived at by conmdenng the historic loss rate and. OdJUStIn

CHN e

hos resulted in an increase in the estlmcted loss rate in 2020 Both hlstonc Iosses and expected future osses elng“ ﬁ .
very low, the Directors consider it appropriate to apply a single average rate for expected credit losses to the

overall population of trade receivables and accrued income. Accrued income relates to unbilled work in progreés
cmd hcs substcntlclly the same risk choroctenstlcs as _the trade recelvobles for the same types of controcts

Credlt nsk e

The Group's principal financial assets are trade receivables, accrued income and bank balances, which represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables and accrued income. The credit risk ph cash balances
_is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The maijority of the Group's trade receivables and accrued income is due from large national 6r multinational companies
where the risk of default is considered low. In order to mitigate this risk further, the Group has arranged credit insurance on
certain of its trade receivables as deemed appropriate. Where credit insurance is not considered cost effective, the Group
monitors credit-worthiness closely and mitigates fisk, where appropriate, through payment plans. )
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16. Trade and Other Receivables - continued

There can be no assurance that any of the Group's Clients will continue to utilise the Group's services to the same extent,
or at all, in the future. The loss of, or a significant reduction in advertising and marketing spending by, the Group’s largest
Clients, if not replaced by new Client accounts or an increase in business from existing Clients, would adversely affect
the Group's prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations. The impact would however be limited as
only trt\ree Clients represented rE?‘;r,e. than 3% of total operating income in 2020 (2019: two Clients).

Iy A

PO VAL A B B A oK ]

. 2t {fz. ~F e S P L. . T i)
17, Cash and Short Tern\‘Depo‘sit{ h - Tt tttm Tt o T T T e T m _:
A e & LI o N B I -
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Cash.and short term deposits comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits. ... g == 4ot worm a3 -
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18. Trade and Other Payabies

- W A L e e e - — ——

A
%ﬁ

Deferred income has increased by £2,882,000 predominantly as a result of a number of Clients making payments
on account shortly before year end. ‘e : ’ ' . S

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

? .
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Bank debt arrangement fees where they can be amortised over the life of the loan foc:llty, areincluded in »f’in_qr)g:__e;_
costs. The unamortlsed portlon is reported as a reduction in bank loans outstcndlng

At 31 December 2020 the Group's committed bonk facilities comprised a revolving credit facility of £20, Om expiring on

28 September 2021, with an option to extend the focnllty by one year. Interest on the focnhty is based on LIBOR plus a margrn
~of between 1.25% and 2.00% depénding on the Group s debt leverage ratio. On 6 April 2021, the Group agreed a new

revolving credit focnllty of £20m, expiring on S April 2024, with an option to increase the facility by £5m and by one year.

Interest on the new facility is based on SONIA (sterling overnight index average) plus a margin of between 1.50% and 2.25%

depending on the Grovup’s debt leverage ratio, payable in cash on loan rollover dates.

In addition to its committed facilities, the Group has available an overdroft facility of up to £3.0m with interest payoble
by reference to National Westminster Bank plc’Base Rate plus 2.25%

At 31 December 2020, there was a cross guarantee structure in place with the Group's bankers by means of a fixed and
" floating charge over all of the assets of the Group companies in favour of National Westminster Bank plc. This security
arrangement has been replicated in the Group's new banking facilities.
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20. Lease Liabilities

Obligations under leases are due as follows:

The fair values of the Group's lease obligations approximate their carrying amount.

The Group's obligations under leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

21. Acquisitions

21.1 Acquisition Obligations . . . L » R S
The terms of an acquisition provide that the value of the purchase consideration, which may be payable in cash or
shares at a future date, depends on uncertain future events such as the future performance of the acquired company.
The Directors estimate that the liability for contingent consideration payments is as follows:

4 @ Annual repoit for the vear ended December 2020



21, Acquisitions - continued

21.2 Acquisitions during the‘yecrr - . e .
A total of £608,000 was invested in acquisitions during the year, comprising initial cash consideration of £100,000

and deferred contingent consideration of £508,000. Had the Group consolidated the results of acquisitions mode
durrng the year, from the begrnnrng ">f the year, the Directors estimate that the turnover, operating income and
headline operating profit of the Group would not have been materially different to the numbers presented in the
consolidated income statement 22

ot Co8,¢ SRS e OnO LM fu v G Tl B gL
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. 22.Share Capital
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Dem R oM zr. arthannn ceaae8
The TMMG Long Term Incentrve Plan ("LTIP") was created to incentivise senior employees across the Group Nil-cost

options are awarded at the discretion of, "and vest based on criterid established by,'the Remunération Committee, & #>m
During the year, 223,299 options granted,in 2015 and 2017 were exercised at an average share:price of 61.9p-and rot . sam ny

e e P

at the end of the yéar 225 921 of the outstondrng optrons are exercrg,cble Cartain individuals récaived performance
LR

owclrds in the eorly part-of 2020 as-a result of the frncmcrol performance of their Agency in 2019 and-a proportion— =~
of these awards were in grants of nil-cost options over a total of 553,364 shares, vesting over a 3 year period to 2023.
. . 5 o i

Shares held in an Employee Benefit Trust (see Note 23} will be used to satisfy share optrons exercised under the Long
Térm Incentive Plan. vk . n¥an

00Ga ‘ gooa’ czom
A Growth Share Scheme was |mplemented on 21 Februory 2077. Participants in the scheme subscrrbed for Ordrncry A
sharés in The Mission Morketrng Holdings Limited (the™ growth shares”) at a nominal value. The performonce ¢SRdition
attaching to these growth shares was met during 2019 and the shares could be exchanged for an equivalent number.~ 10
of Ordincrry Shares in MISSION during the period up to 60 days from the announcement of the Group‘s finonciol res’ult_sM“A
for the year ending 31 December 2019, subject only to contrnued employment. Dunng the yeor the S, 434 162 growth
shcrres were exchanged for 5,434,162 Ordinary Shares. e ¥ 0 it WB-gY
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Shares are held in an Employee Benefit Trust to meet certain requirements of the Long Term Incentive Plan.

24. Share-Based incentive Reserve

The share-based incentive reserve represents charges to the profit or loss required by IFRS 2 to reflect the cost of the
nil-cost share options and-growth shares issued to the Directors and employees. -

25. Share-Based Payments

Nil-cost share options

Details of the relevant option schemes are given in Note 22. Fair value on giant date is measured by use of a Black Scholes
model. The valuation methodology is applied at each year-end and the valuation revised to take account of any changes
in estimate of the likely number of shares expected to vest. The fair value of options issued during the year was 55.0p per
option at measurement date. The key inputs are: C ’

The weighted average share price over the three years ending 31 December 2020 was 65.4p and the weighted average
remaining contractual life of the share options outstanding at 31 December 2020 was 4.4 years.

The Group recognised an expense of £179,000 in 2020 (2019: £127,000).

Growth Shares ‘ )

Details of the Growth Share scheme are given in Note 22. The fair value of growth shares was measured by use of o
Monte Carlo simulation model, which uses probability analysis to calculate the value of options. The fair value of the
growth shares issued in 2017 was 5.0p per share at measurement date. No growth shares were issued in 2018, 2019 or
2020. The key inputs for the valuation of the growth shares issued in 2017 were:
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Volatility is based on the hrstorlcol volcmhty of the share price over a 3 year trading period. Dunng 2020 all of the
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The Group'recognised an'expense of £34,000 in 2020 (2019: £75,000) """~ ——— "~ -
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26. Financial Assets and Liabilities

Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as being debt plus equity. Net bank debt comprises short and long term borrowings
net of cash, cash equivalents and the unamortised balance of bank renegotiation fees as analysed in Note 19. '
tn addition, the Group treats its commitment to future consideration payments under acquisition agreements as
another component of debt. Equity comprises issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed

in the balance sheet and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern and maintain an appropriate capital structure to balance the needs of the Group to grow, . C
whilst op_eroting with sufficient headroom within its bank covenants. The principal measures by which the Directors
monitor capital risk are thelratio‘s of net bank debt to EBITDA and total debt (including both net bank debt and
estimated acquisition consideration payable) to EBITDA. (Note that, since acquisition consideration is dependent
on future levels of profitability in the acquired business, which are inevitably uncertain, the Directors calculate
this ratio by reference to the amount of consideration which would be payable if the acquired business were to
maintain its current level of profi‘tcbility.) The Directors have set targets, of remaining below x1.5 and x2.0 for these
ratios respectively (calculated on a pre-IFRS 16 basis). ' o

Findncial risk management ¢ AT e 2

The Group's policy is to eliminate financial risk where it is cost-effective, including the use of credit insurance and

v
currency hedges, and to mitigate it where not, including close monitoring of credit-worthiness and the use of Client
payment plans if possible. The Group's policy is not to use any financial instruments for speculating.

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and various forms of borrowings.

Substantially all the Group's activities continue to take place in the United Kingdom. Where revenue is generated in
one currency and costs are incurred in another, the Group aims to agree pricing at the outset of a piece of work and
then hedge its foreign currency exposure, if considered srgnlfdccnt through the use of forward exchange contracts.
There was no material foreign currency exposure dt the year end. ’

The main purpose of the Group s use of financial instruments is for day-to-day working capital and as part of the
funding for past acquisitions. The Group’s financial policy and risk management objective is to achieve the best
interest rates available whilst maintaining flexibility and minimising risk. The main risks arising from the Group's use
of financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
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26. Financial Assets and Liabilities ~ continued
Interest rate risk
The operations of the Group generate cash and it funds acquisitions through a combination of retained profits,
equity issues and borrowings. The Group's financial liabilities comprise floating rate instruments. The bank loan’s
interest rate is reset from time to time and accordingly is not deemed a fixed rate financial liability.
Interest on the Group's revolving credit facility is payable by reference to LIBOR, subject to downward or upward
ratchets depending on certain ratios of debt to EBITDA on a quarterly basis. The Directors have considered
again the relative merits of the use of hedging instruments to limit the exposure to interest rate risk. Since the
sensitivity of profits to a 1% change in interest rates is less than £0.1m, they have decided not to enter into any
hedging arrangements.
Liquidity risk
The Group's financial instruments include a mixture of short and long-term borrowings. The Group seeks to
ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet working capital needs and the repayment terms of the Group's
financial instruments as they mature.
I 31 December. R C:n Decembeiy_?
Financlal agsets " - C20200 00 N T 2019 )
£00
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The Group’s bank loans and overdraft facility are floating rate borrowings and all facilities are secured by a fixed and floating
charge over the assets of all Group companies. ' '

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities is not considered to be materially different from their book values.

27. Leave Pay Accrual -

The Group has a policy of not allowing days to be carried forward from one year to the next, unless in exceptiohal
circumstances. In addition, no payment is made in lieu of untaken leave which is not carried forward. There is no material
liability relating to untaken leave at year end. - - : N
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28. Post Balance Sheet Events

On 6 April 2021, the Group agreed a new revolving credit facility of £20m, expiring on 5 April 2024, with an option to
increase the facility by £5m and by one year. Further details are provided in Note 19. '

29. Related Party Transactions

.

S .

-

The Directors consider that the Directors of the Company represent the Group's key management personnel ,

for the purposes of di'sclosing related party transactions. Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in detail in Note 7.

The total compensation payable to key management personnel is detailed below.

X

‘g@ RS
(TR

L

Bray Leino Ltd rents property from entities under the
control of Daviq Morgan, Chairman of The MISSION
Group plc, and members of his close 'fcmi"ly. During the
year the Company ﬁaid annual rental and property fees
totalling £75,000 (2019: £75,250). There were no amounts
owed at the balance sheet date to‘thesevent'it'ies.

ThinkBDW Ltd was contracted to pay annual rent to‘Rébert

Day Associates Ltd, a company controlled by Mrs KDay
(wife of Robert Day, Executive Director), until the business

premises being rented were sold by Robert Day Associates .

Ltd to an unrelated third party on 17 January 2020. The
lease commenced on 1 October 2019 at a rent of £375,000
per year following the surrender of the previous lease .
(£235,000 per year under the previous lease agreement).
Aggregate rent paid in the year to Robert Day Associates
Ltd was £93,750 (2019: £328,000). .

In addition, ThinkBDW Ltd purchased energy generated by
a photovoltaic array owned by Robert Day Associates Ltd
at a discounted commercial rate. The right to receive
income from the array passed to the new landlord at the

‘same time the freehold interest was transferred. The cost

30. Availability ofLAnnLioI. Report .

s

to the Group in 2020 up to the date of sale was nil (2019:
£15,964).

Krow Agency Ltd is contracted to pay annual rent to

four individuals, including Dylan Bogg (Executive Director).
During the year, total rental of £74,000 (2019: £74,000)
was paid and no amount was outstanding at the balance
sheet date. ' T '

1 1

During the year Solaris Healthcare Network Ltd made
sales of nil (2019: £9,555) to Viramal Limited, a company
in which Peter Fitzwilliam (Executive Director) is a director
and shareholder. There were no amounts due as at the

beginning or end of the financial year.

During 2017 nine directors received loans totalling £75,549
in respect of the personal tax payable on a growth
share award, as follows: Dylan Bogg £6,667; James Clifton
£10,000; Robert Day £10,000; Julian Hanson-Smith

£2,374; Peter Fitzwilliam £10,000; Giles Lee £10,000; David
Morgan £10,000; Sue Mullen £6,708; Fiona Shepherd
£10,000. No interest is being charged and all loans remain
outstanding at the year end. All loans are repayable

from the proceeds of the share sale on 22 February 2021.

i

- . ‘ L '

Copies of the Annual Report for the year ended 31December 2020 will be circulated to shareholders at least
21days ahead of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") on 14 June 2021 and, after approval at the AGM, will be
delivered to the Registrar of Companies. Further copies will be available from the Company’s registered office

and on the Group's website, www.themission.co.uk.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report: Company

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements

of The MISSION Group plc (the ‘Company’)

for the year ended 31 December 2020,

which comprise the Company Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the related
notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic

of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the
company's affairs as at 31 December 2020
and of its profit for the year ended,;

+ have been properly prepared.in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK)

(ISAs {UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance

with the ethical requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied
to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the director’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on'the work we have performed (as set

out in the group audit report), we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period
of at least twelve months from when the original
financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of
the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance

in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed
risks of material misstatement (whether or not due

to fraud) we identified, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy,

the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing
the efforts of the engagement team. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified for the company
related to the carrying value of its investments,
given the company holds material investments

in subsidiary undertakings and in light of the known
and potential economic impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. The company receives dividend income
from its trading subsidiaries. We reviewed and
considered the level of dividend income received
from subsidiary companies along with the ongoing
ability for subsidiary companies to generate
distributable profits. Further detailed work in respect
of goodwill impairment in respect of the group's cash
generating units is set out in our group audit report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT: COMPANY
|

Our application of materiality

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered

to be material if individually or in aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of the financial statements. We use quantitative
thresholds of materiality, together with qualitative
assessments in planning the scope of our audit,
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the company financial statements
should be based on gross assets as it is a holding
company. This was then restricted to 50% of group
materiality to give overall company materiality of
£194,000, performance materiality of £144,000

and individual errors above £6,000 were reported

to the audit committee.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify

such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken
in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic Report
and Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have
been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the
company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements
in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us

to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been
kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements are
not in agreement with the accounting records

and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on pages 34 and 35, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give

a true and fair view, and for such internal control as

the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors

are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Audlilor's responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conclucted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error ond are considered material if, individually
orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements
inrespect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework applicable to the company
and the industry in which it operates. We identified
the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations as relating to breaches around health
and safety and GDPR. We also considered those
laws and regulations that have a direct impact on
the preparation of the financial statements such

as financial reporting legislation {including The
Companies Act 2006), distributable profits legislation,
taxation legislation and Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme (CJRS) legislation. We considered the extent
to which any non-compliance with these laws and
regulations may have on the company's ability

to continue trading and the risk of a material
misstatement in the financial statements.

We aiso evaluated management's incentives

and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation

of the financial statements and determined that
the principal risks related to the misstatement of
the result for the year and impairment of assets.
Based on this understanding we designed our audit
procedures to identify irregularities. Qur procedures
involved the following:

- We made enquiries of senior management as to
their knowledge of any non-compliance or potential
non-compliance with laws and regulations that
could affect the financial statements. As part of
these enquiries we also discussed with mancagement
whether there have been any known instonces
of material fraud, of which there were none.

+ We identified the individuals with responsibility
for ensuring compliance with laws and regulations
and discussed with them the procedures and
policies in place.

+ Our CJRS work included substantive testing
of management'’s calculations and review of
supporting paperwork.

+ We reviewed minutes of meetings of Senior
Management and those charged with governance.

- We challenged the assumptions and judgements
made by management in its significant accounting
estimates.

« We audited the risk of management override of
controls, including through testing journal entries
and other adjustments for appropriateness,
and evaluating the business rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities is available
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description

forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’'s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company'’s

members those matters we are required to state to them

in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or

assume responsibility to anyone other than the company

and the company’s members as a body, for our audit

work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Glenn Nicot (Senior Statutory Auciitor)

PKF Francis Clark, Statutory Auditor
Centenary House . ,
Peninsula Park P lj\ F F RA~Crrs C

Rydon Lane
Exeter,EX2 7XE

Date: 14 April 2021
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised
below. They have all been applied consistently
throughout the year and to the preceding year.

General information and basis of accounting

The MISSION Group plc is a company incorporated
in England and Wales under the Companies

Act. The address of the registered office is given
on page 99. The nature of the Group’s operations
and its principal activities are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 4 to 9.

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, modified to include
certain items at fair value, and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) issued

by the Financial Reporting Council.

Reduced disclosure exemptions

The MISSION Group plc meets the definition of a
quailifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore
taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions
available to it in respect of its financial statements.
Exemptions have been taken in relation to the
presentation of a cash flow statement, financial
instruments, share-based payment, share capital
and remuneration of key management personnel.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised on all timing
differences where the transactions or event that
give the Company an obligation to pay more tax

in the future, or a right to pay less tax in the future,
have occurred by the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognised when it is more likely than
not that they will be recoverable. Deferred tax is
measured using rates of tax that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date:

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Company becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at transaction price (including
transaction costs), except for those financial
assets classified as fair value through profit and
loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in

the statement of financial position when, and only
when, there exists a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Debt instruments which meet the conditions to

be classified as basic instruments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Basic debt instruments that are classified as payable

or receivable within one year are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration
expected to be paid or received, net of impairment.

Financial liabilities are released to the profit and loss
account when the liability is extinguished.
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Contingent consideration payments

The terms of an acquisition may provide that the
value of the purchase consideration, which may

be payable in cash or shares at a future date,
depends on uncertain future events such as the
future performance of the acquired company.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements
represent a reasonable estimate at the balance sheet
date of the amounts expected to be paid and has
been classified in the balance sheet in accordance
with the substance of the transaction. Revisions to
estimated consideration payable year on year are

reflected in the value of the corresponding investment.

Where the agreement gives rise to an obligation

that may be settled by the delivery of a variable
number of shares to meet a defined monetary liability,
these amounts are disclosed as debt.

Investments

In the Company'’s financial statements, investments
in subsidiary and associate undertakings are stated
at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and judgements
concerning the future and the resulting estimates
may, by definition, vary from the actual results.
The Directors considered the critical accounting
estimates and judgements used in the financial
statements and concluded that the main areas
of judgement are, in order of significance:

Potential impairment of investments

The potential impairment of investments is based
on estimates of future cash flows derived from the
financial projections of each cash-generating unit
over an initial three year period and assumptions
about growth thereafter.

Contingent payments in respect of acquisitions

Contingent consideration, by definition, depends

on uncertain future events. At the time of purchasing
a business, the Directors use the financial projections
obtained during due diligence as the basis for
estimating contingent consideration. Subsequent
estimates benefit from the greater insight gained in
the post-acquisition period and the business’ track
record of financial performance.

Lease commitments

Rental costs under operating leases are charged
against profits as incurred.

Profit of parent company

As permitted under Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company
is not presented as part of these accounts.
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32. intangible Assets

Additions of £222,000 (2019: £237,000) in the year include costsassociated with'the development of idéhtifioble software
products that are expected to generate economic benefits in excéss of the costs of development.
During the year,,thé Innovation Bubble business was acquired and hived up into the opérdtions of The MISSION Group plc’

giving rise to goodwill of £608,000.
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Addrtlons in‘the year represent the value of shdresTissuéd to holders of A Ordlncnry shares’in The MlSSlon Morketmg Holdlngs )
ttd ("Growth shares”). followmg the vesting and exercise of the Growth Share Scheme. -

Alist of the principal trading companies in the Group at.31 December 2020 canbe’ found in Note 12 to the Consolldoted
Financial Statements and a complete list canbe found in Note 42. .- . S B .

34. Debtors
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36. Creditors: Amounts Falling bue After More Than One Year
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Details of the Company's borrowing facilities and interest rates are set out in Note 19. el e
All borrowings are in sterling. "
As at 31 December 2020; net ossets of the Group were £90,229,000{2019: £92,301,000) and net borrowungs under thIS -
Group arrangement amounted to £1,163,000 (2019: £4,899,000). . . . ... . . . e sl

38. Share Capital and Own Shares

The movements on these items are disclosed within the Consolidated Financial Statements.

A description of Own Shares is disclosed in Note 23. During the year, the Combcny issued 5,720,332 Ordinary shares
of 10p each (2019: 938,214) and at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in issue was 91,015,897 (2019: 85,295,565).

39. Unrealised Reserves

Included in reserves at 31 December is unrealised profit, which is non-distributable, of £3,165,000 (2019: £3,165,000).
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e

40. Operating Lease Commitments

The total minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

oy et Ve

Ty e

Details of related party transactions are disclosed in Note 29 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Exemptions allowed under FRS 102 have been taken from reporting transactions and balances with group companies. . ;-

.

42. Group companies

Below isa list of all companies in the Group. All subsidiaries are 100% owned and all are incorpordted in thegUnit'edJ(inngm,_

- unless.otherwise indicated. In addition, the Company holds.indirect interests.in. Watchable Ltd. (25%).¢pd. FenturiLtd (25%),

both treated as associated companies, and indirect interests in European Exhibit Services SRO (60%'058 iricdrbi)roted in
the Czech Repubilic), Destination CMS Ltd (50%) and Vivactis Global Health Ltd (50%), all treated &s joirt venturés: Unless
otherwise stated, the registered office of all companies is The Old Sawmills, Filleigh, Barnstaple, EX32 ORN... .+ - 2

1

Heldid
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“** These subS|d|or|es are exempt from the Companles Act 2006 reqmrements relotlng to the audit of their |nd|V|duol
accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Act as The MISSION Group plc has guaranteed the subS|d|c1ry compcny
under Section479C of the Act. L v . . G e
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting
(FAGM™) of The MISSION Group plc (the “Company”) will
be held al 12 noon on Monday 14 June 2021 at the offices
of krow Communications (“krow”), 80 Goswell Road,
London, EC1V 7DB (o transact the business set-outl below.

We are keen to welcome shareholders in person to our
2021 AGM within safety constraints and in accordance
with government guidelines, particularly given the
circumstances we faced in 2020 due to COVID-19

which resulted in us holding a closed meeting. At present,
a limited number of people in attendance is possible
under government guidelines and we are therefore
proposing to go ahead with an open meeting at krow's
offices. We will restrict the number of Board members
attending in person to enable a greatér number of
shareholders to attend, but we will ask other Board
members to join the AGM by video conference to enable
shareholders to engage directly with the Company in
the normal way. Shareholders intending to attend the
AGM are asked to register their intention as soon as
possible by emailing contact@themission.co.uk.

Given the constantly evolving nature of the situation,
should circumstances change such that we consider
itis no longer possible for shareholders to attend

the meeting, we will notify shareholders through

the Company's website (www.themission.co.uk) and,
where appropriate, by a Regulatory News Service
announcement. For the same reason of uncertainty,

we encourage all shareholders to exercise their votes
by submitting their proxy by post and are encouraged
to appoint the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
In order to be valid an appointment of proxy must be
completed, signed and returned in hard copy form by
post, by courier or by hand to Neville Registrars Limited,
Neville House, Steelpark Road, Halesowen, West Midlands
B62 8HD no later than 12 noon on Thursday 10 June 2021.

Irrespective of the guidelines in place at the time of
the 2021 AGM, we understand that some shareholders
may not wish to travel but may still wish to ask
questions of the Board. Any questions should be
emailed to contact@themission.co.uk in advance and
we will endeavour to add a synopsis of all questions
and answers to our website shortly after the meeting.

The following resolutions will be proposed
ds ordindary-resoiutions:

Report and Accounts

1. Toreceive the financial statements and the reports
of the Directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Directors

2. Tore-elect Julian Hanson-Smith as a Director.

Auditors

3. Tore-appoint PKF Francis Clark as auditors of
the Company.

4. To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration
of PKF Francis Clark.

Authority to allot shares

5. THAT the Directors be and are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to exercise all the
powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company
and to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any
security into, shares in the Company up to an aggregate
nominal value of £3,033,863 being one third of the
issued share capital of the Company, provided that
this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next
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Annual General Meeting of the Company after the
passing of this resolution, save that the Company shall
be entitled to make an offer or agreement before the
expiry of such authority which would or might require
shares to be allotted or any such rights to be granted,
after such expiry and the Directors shall be entitled to
aliot shares or grant any such rights pursuant to any
such offer or agreement as if this authority had not
expired and all unexercised authorities previously
granted to the Directors to allot shares or grant any
such rights be and are hereby revoked provided that
the resolution shall not affect the right of the Directors
to allot shares or grant any such rights in pursuance
of any offer or agreement entered into prior to the
date of this resolution.

The following resolutions will be proposed
as special resolutions:

Authority to dis-apply pre-emption rights

6. THAT (subject to the passing of the resolution
numbered 5 above) the Directors be and are hereby
empowered pursuant to Section 570, Section 571 and
Section 573 of the Act to allot equity securities {as
defined in Section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant
to the authority conferred By resolution 5 above as
if Section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

i. the allotment of equity securities in connection
with a rights issue, open offer or other offer of
securities in favour of the holders of ordinary
shares on the register of members at such record
date(s) as the Directors may determine where
the equity securities respectively attributable
to the interests of the ordinary shareholders
are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the
respective numbers of ordinary shares held by
them on any such record date(s), subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient to deal with
treasury shares, fractional entitlements or legal
or practical problems arising under the laws
of any overseas territory or the requirements
of any regulatory body or stock exchange or by
virtue of shares being represented by depositary
receipts or any other matter whatever; and

ii. the allotment (other than pursuant to
sub-paragraph (i) above) to any person or
persons of equity securities up to an aggregate
nominal value of £910,158.97 being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

This power shall expire upon the expiry of the general
authority conferred by resolution 5 above, save that the
Company shall be entitled to make an offer or agreement
before the expiry of such power which would or might
require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the Directors shall be entitled to allot equity securities
pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred hereby had not expired and all unexercised
authorities previously granted to the Directors to ailot
equity securities be and are hereby revoked provided that
the resolution shall not affect the right of the Directors

to allot equity securities in pursuance of any offer or
agreement entered into prior to the date of this resolution.

Authority to purchase own shares

7. THAT pursuant to section 701 of the Act and subject
to, and in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company be generally and
unconditionally authorised to make market purchases
{within the meaning of Section é93(4}) of the Act)
of ordinary shares of the Company provided that:

i. the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be acquired is 13,652,384 being
15% of the issued share capital;, and

ii. the minimum price which may be paid for
an ordinary share is the nominal value of such
share; and

iii. the maximum price which may be paid for an
ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of
the average of the middle market quotations for
an ordinary share in the Company as derived from
The London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the
day on which such ordinary share is contracted
to be purchased; and

Annual report for the year ended December 2020

o7



Additional Information

By Order of the Board:
Peter Fitzwilliom
14 April 2021,

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENE

iv. the authority hereby conferred:shall expire ot the
conclusion of the Annual G_e_aner_ql‘Meet'ing of the
Company held in 2022 or 18 months from'the-daté
of this resolytion (whichever is earlier); and

v. the Company may rmake any purchase-of-its
ordinary shares pursuant to-a contract coneluded
‘before the diithority heréby conferred expires
-and which will or may be executed wholly-or
partly after the expiry of such guthority; and’

vi: all ordinary shares purchiased pursuant to

the autharity conferred by this resolution 7 shall
be cancellediirhmediately onh-coirpletion of
‘the purchase gr held.in treasury:(provided that
thie dggrégdte riominial value of shares héld

as treagsury shares:shall not.ot any time exceed
10:?per'.g:ent of the issued share capital of the:
Company at any time)./”

Note to the Notice of Annual General ‘Meeting

1.

‘Shareholders:wishing to dttend the AGM are asked
toregister their intention as soon:as possible by
emailing contact@themission.co.uk;-Rules around
‘capacity at the AGM venue and changes in health
ond safety: requirements may mean shareholdérs
¢anriot ultimately attend thé meeting..

A miember entitled to Gttend and voté at the Annual
General Meeting may -appoint:-one or more.proxies
{who need not.be a membér of the Company) to-attend,
speak andvote on'his or her behalf. A member may
dp'point more than one proxy in relation to'the meeting
provided that'each proxy is appointed to exercise the
Trights attached todifferent.shares. To appoint as your
proxy @ person otherthan the.chairman of the megeting,
insert theif full naimiein thebok o the Form of Proxy.
qaccompanying the annual report: Where you appoint
as yourproxy someone-other than the ¢hairman,

AL MEETING

you are.responsible for ensuring that they attend the
meeting and dre aware.of yout'voting intentions. If'you
wishyour proxy to-make any. commitments on your
behalf,:you will need t6.appoint.someone other'the
chdirman; aihd dive them relevant instructions:directly.

Given the uncertainty around whéther shareholders
will be able to-attend the AGM, whether because
the ¢apacity at'the venueé:does not cllow for

safety reasons related to COVID-19 restrictions or
due'to.a'change in the situation.with the COVID-19
pandemic, we recommend that all shateholders
appsint'the chairman of thé meeting to speak and

vote.on yourbehalf;

If yoursign-and return the proxy form with no name
inserted in the box, the chairman of the meeting

‘will be deemed to be your proxy:

In order to be valid an appointment of proxy-must
be comgleted, signed dnd returried if hdrd copy
form by. post, by courier-orby.hand to Neville
Registrars Liited, Neville-House, Steelpark Road,
Halesowien, West Midlands B62 8HD, The closing

time for lodging proxies is 12 riosh on Thursday
10 June 2021..For thepurposes of determining

which persons are entitled to attend or vote ot

the meeting, members entered on the Company's
register of mémbefrs.at 6p.m. o‘h'Th‘_ursd'q_y 10-June
haye the right:to.attend and vote at the meeting.
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Parent company accounts for
April Six (Mobility) Limited
Company No 03679160

(the audit exemption note is shown on pages 94-95 of
~ the parent accounts)



